AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL

Thursday, August 20, 2020
9:15 a.m.
Council Chambers
9 James Street, Parry Sound, Ontario

20-

20-

CALL TO ORDER

i)
i)
ii)

iv)

National Anthem

Approval of Agenda

Traditional Land Acknowledgement Statement
Announcement of Public Meetings

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

i)

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of

Reqular Meeting Of Council = July 16, 2020

Pages: 1-9

Council held on July 16, 2020, be approved.

i)

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Closed Committee

Closed Committee Meeting — December 12, 2019

Meeting held on December 12, 2019, be approved.

i)

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Closed Committee

Closed Committee Meeting — February 20, 2020

Meeting held on February 20, 2020, be approved.

iv)

Closed Council Meeting — February 21, 2020
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20-

20-

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Closed Council
Meeting held on February 21, 2020, be approved.

V) Closed Council Meeting — April 23, 2020

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Closed Council
Meeting held on April 23, 2020, be approved.

DEPUTATIONS

9:40 a.m. Bill Lougheed, Executive Director, Georgian Bay Land Trust —
Presentation of Granville Volunteer Recognition Award

10:00 a.m. Giselle Bodkin, BDO Canada LLP. Presentation of 2019
Financial Statements

Pages: 10-32
CLOSED MEETING

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council move into a CLOSED
MEETING at a.m./p.m., pursuant to Section 239(2)(c)(f)(k) of the
Municipal Act, 2001,S.0. 2001, c.25, as amended, to deal with a proposed or
pending acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality; advice that is subject
to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose;
and a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied to any
negotiations carried on or to be carried on by or on behalf of the municipality.

i) Internet Connectivity

OPEN MEETING

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council move out of a CLOSED
MEETING at a.m./p.m.

UNFINISHED PLANNING BUSINESS

OFFICIAL PLAN/ZONING AMENDMENTS

CONSENT APPLICATIONS

SITE PLAN CONTROL

i) Daniel Reszczynski D. Ashley
PIN 52185-0131 A. Barton
Cowper R. Zanussi

Pages: 33-105
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20-

10.

11.

20-

12.

13.

20-

14.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council has no objection to the site
plan development application regarding the proposed development on the property
located on Sandy Island, being Lot 1 on Plan M-346, together with Block A on Plan
M-346, designated as Parcel 21351 PSSS, in front of the geographic Township of
Cowper, as illustrated in Site Plan Development Application No. SP03-19.
SHORE/CONCESSION ROAD ALLOWANCES
CAO REPORT ON COUNCIL DIRECTIONS

Pages: 106

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council receives the August CAO
Report on Council Directions, as distributed.

REPORT OF TASK FORCES/COMMITTEES
CORRESPONDENCE

i) Council Correspondence

Pages: 107-110

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council receives the August 2020
Council Correspondence listing.

OTHER BUSINESS

i) Departmental Updates

i) Main Street Revitalization Initiative Update

Pages: 111

iii)  South Shore Road Speeding Concerns Update

Pages: 112-115

iv) Zoning By-law Review 11:00 a.m.

Pages: 116-124

V) 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements

Pages: 10-32
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NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the 2019
Consolidated Financial Statements prepared by BDO Canada LLP for the year
ended December 31, 20109.

Vi) Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affair and Housing. Safe Start
Agreement

Pages: 125-129

vii)  Electronic Participation and Voting at Council and Board/Committee
Meetings

WHEREAS the Province of Ontario's Declared State of Emergency officially ended
on July 24th, 2020; and

WHEREAS Bill 197, the COVID-19 Economic Recovery Act, 2020, which received
Royal Assent on July 21, 2020, allows for the opportunity for Municipal Councils,
Local Boards and their Committees to meet electronically; and

WHEREAS COVID-19 continues to exist as a declared world-wide pandemic that
alters and effects the operation and business aspects of our organization; and

WHEREAS Council recognizes the importance of balancing the delivery of
services, while continuing to ensure the safety the residents, members of council,
staff and the public;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council of the Corporation of the
Township of The Archipelago hereby extends until December 31st, 2020, the terms
of electronic participation at meetings of Council, Local Boards or of a Committee
or either of them permitting:

a) electronic participation counts towards quorum;
b) electronic participants are permitted to vote; and
c) electronic participation is permitted in a meeting closed to the public.

viii) Council Strategic Direction Document

Pages: 130-166

iX) EMS Advisory Committee Update S. Sheard

X) Tax Exempt Properties — Town of Parry Sound

Pages: 167-178

Xi) Internet Connectivity

Report to follow
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15.

20-

16.

17.

18.

20-

19.

xii)  Donation Policy - Henvey Inlet Wind Project Community Funds

Pages: 179-180

xiii)  Letter to LCBO Agency regarding San Souci Marina

Pages: 181-182
BY-LAWS

)] Amendment to Procedural By-law 2017-07

Pages: 183-197
Being a By-law to amend By-law 2017-07, being a By-law for governing the calling,
place and proceedings of meetings of Council, Task Forces and Committees of
Council for the Township of The Archipelago.

i) Daniel Reszczynski Site Plan Development Agreement

Pages: 43-105
Pages: 198

Being a By-law to authorize the execution of a site plan development agreement
between Daniel Reszczynski, and the Corporation of the Township of The
Archipelago.

QUESTION TIME

NOTICES OF MOTION

CONFIRMING BY-LAW

Being a By-law to Confirm the Proceedings of the Regular Meeting of Council held
on August 20, 2020.

ADJOURNMENT



The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
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MINUTES
MEETING OF COUNCIL
July 16, 2020
9 James Street, Parry Sound, Ontario
Via GoToMeeting
Council Members Present: Reeve: Bert Liverance
Councillors: Greg Andrews Ward 1
Laurie Emery Ward 1
Peter Frost Ward 2
Earl Manners Ward 3
Scott Sheard Ward 3
David Ashley Ward 4
Alice Barton Ward 4
Rick Zanussi Ward 4
lan Mead Ward 5
Grant Walker Ward 6
Staff Present: John Fior, Chief Administrative Officer

Maryann Weaver — Clerk
Joe Villeneuve — Manager of Corporate Services
Cale Henderson — Manager of Development & Environmental Services
Wendy Hawes, Treasurer
Greg Mariotti, Manager of Operational Services
1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 9:58 a.m., and commenced with the singing of the National Anthem,
Roll Call, and a Traditional Land Acknowledgement Statement.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

20-089 Moved by Councillor Frost
Seconded by Councillor Ashley

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the July 16th, 2020 Revised Council Meeting Agenda,
be approved.

Carried.
3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Regular Meeting Of Council

20-090 Moved by Councillor Emery
Seconded by Councillor Barton

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held on
June 18, 2020, be approved.

Carried.
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4, CLOSED MEETING

20-091 Moved by Councillor Sheard
Seconded by Councillor Andrews

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council move into a CLOSED MEETING at
10:05a.m., pursuant to Section 239(2)(f) of the Municipal Act, 2001,S.0. 2001, ¢.25, as amended,
to deal with advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary
for that purpose.

i) Manitou Inn Site Alteration Update

Carried.
OPEN MEETING

20-092 Moved by Councillor Manners
Seconded by Councillor Walker

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council move out of a CLOSED MEETING at
10:23a.m.

Carried.
5. REPORT OF THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

John Fior reported that starting next month Council will be receiving a revised CAO Report which will
highlight Council directions. Council will also be provided with a projects list.

6. CORRESPONDENCE

Council Correspondence

20-093 Moved by Councillor Zanussi
Seconded by Councillor Mead

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council receives the July 2020 Council
Correspondence listing.

Carried.

7. OTHER BUSINESS

Town of Parry Sound. Recommending Order mandating the wearing of masks entering
commercial establishments

20-094 Moved by Councillor Frost
Seconded by Councillor Sheard

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council for the Township of The Archipelago support
the Town of Parry Sound and the North Bay Parry Sound Health District Unit in their
implementation of the requirement for individuals to wear face coverings, as directed, in public
settings.

Carried.

2019 Annual Report of the Integrity Commissioner

20-095 Moved by Councillor Frost
Seconded by Councillor Manners



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council Page 3
July 16, 2020

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council receive the 2019 Annual Report of the
Integrity Commissioner, dated June 26, 2020.

Carried.

Township of Tiny. Septic Inspection Program

Cale Henderson provided an overview on the item. Greg Mason was in attendance to answer questions
of Council.

Council briefly discussed the ongoing review, as well as possibilities for a septic inspection program.

2020 Work Program (July 2020)

John Fior provided an update, reporting that the original 2020 Work Program has been amended due to
Covid-19 activities.

COVID-19 Related Office Changes/Renovations

20-096 Moved by Councillor Ashley
Seconded by Councillor Mead

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council approve the proposed office
changes/renovations set out in the report dated July 16, 2020, and further authorize staff to borrow
from reserves to pay for the changes/renovations to the municipal office building in order to
accommodate additional needs and requirements, and continuing health and safety concerns due
to the COVID-19 emergency.

Carried.

Fire 101 — (Information Report)

Maryann Weaver provided Council with a detailed report on the fire related services within the Township.

Muskoka — Parry Sound Riding Cooperative Broadband Initiative

20-097 Moved by Councillor Mead
Seconded by Councillor Barton

WHEREAS the Township of The Archipelago understands the Federal priority of ensuring
broadband access to 95% of all homes by 2026 & 100% of homes in 2030 and the Province of
Ontario’s priority of supporting infrastructure development projects through the recently announced
Improving Connectivity in Ontario Program;

WHEREAS the Township of The Archipelago recognizes that there are homes and/or businesses
in the Municipality that do not have access to affordable, reliable an adequate broadband internet
that meets national standard of at least 50mbps download and 10mbps upload;

WHEREAS the Township of The Archipelago acknowledges the availability of reliable broadband
internet services to all residents and businesses throughout the municipality as critical to economic
growth, social prosperity and community well-being; and

WHEREAS the Township of The Archipelago acknowledges recent pressures imposed by the
COVID-19 Pandemic on local governments to advocate for improved broadband service
availability and improvement to support functions such as: working from home, e-learning from
home, remote & virtual heath care service delivery and increased demand for in-home
entertainment; and

WHEREAS the Township of The Archipelago is aware of the development of a Muskoka Parry
Sound Riding Cooperative Broadband Initiative focused on developing a model for a collective,
multi-regional strategy for creating and deploying broadband to all residents throughout both
districts; and
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WHEREAS the Township of The Archipelago recognizes that this initiative relies on the
partnership efforts of all affected municipalities, the Parry Sound Muskoka Community Network
(PMCN}), the West Parry Sound SMART Community Network, Blue Sky, health agencies, schools,
DSSAB, economic development organizations and other supportive partners and/or agencies;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of The Archipelago hereby declares their
support in principle for the Muskoka — Parry Sound Riding Cooperative Broadband Initiative to
develop and implement a riding wide strategy to ensure the availability of reliable broadband
services to all residents within the Muskoka and Parry Sound Districts.

AND FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of The Archipelago wishes to be added to
any communication lists for the initiative as to be kept informed of new developments and
opportunities to provide support.

Carried.

FONOM Policy Development - OPP Detachment Boards

Councillor Walker provided a brief update, reporting that he is happy with the current model and
recommends they stay status quo.

Provincial Funding to the West Parry Sound Health Centre

20-098 Moved by Councillor Manners
Seconded by Councillor Emery

WHEREAS the West Parry Sound Health Centre is a community cornerstone to the West Parry
Sound District and an even larger catchment area; and

WHEREAS the West Parry Sound Health Centre is a key component of Ontario’s quality public
healthcare system; and

WHEREAS the West Parry Sound Health Centre is responsible for the standards of practice and
provision of services promoting the health and well-being of all residents of West Parry Sound;
and

WHEREAS the Provincial funding of the West Parry Sound Health Centre does not account for
seasonal fluctuations in resident population and the extended catchment area it serves; and

WHEREAS our Township community raises significant donations to the West Parry Sound Health
Centre; and

WHEREAS the COVID-19 pandemic has further exacerbated the ability of West Parry Sound
Health Centre to meet the standards of practice and provision of services to all residents of West
Parry Sound;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of The Archipelago requests that the
Province provides funding to the West Parry Sound Health Centre that recognizes the real
residential population of West Parry Sound, its tax base and the large catchment area;
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that this resolution be shared with all West Parry Sound
Municipalities, Minister Clark, Minister Elliot, MPP Norm Miller and the West Parry Sound Health
Centre Administration.

Carried.

Municipal Support of International and American Ratepayers

20-099 Moved by Councillor Sheard
Seconded by Councillor Andrews

WHEREAS the management of COVID-19 transmission has affected many communities in
divisionary ways; and
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WHEREAS the federal government of Canada has closed the border to non-essential international
travel for the foreseeable future in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and

WHEREAS the federal governments of Canada and the United States of America have closed our
common border to all non-essential travel for the foreseeable future in response to the COVID-19
pandemic; and

WHEREAS the closing of borders prevents non-citizen property owners in each country to access
their properties in an effort to contain the spread of COVID-19 and protect the health of its citizens;
and

WHEREAS International and American residents are our life-long neighbours, friends, significant
contributors to our community, and local economy; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council of the Township of The Archipelago affirms
that our community is the sum of all its valued residents, no matter the duration of their residency;
and

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that Council expresses the hope that the COVID-19 pandemic can
be controlled to the point where international borders can be safely re-opened such that
international and American property owners can access their properties; and

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that Counci! strives to serve its community equitably and looks
forward to the safe return of our international and American residents;

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that this resolution be shared with other West Parry Sound
Municipalities, The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of
Intergovernmental Affairs, The Honourable Bill Blair, Minister of Public Safety and Emergency
Preparedness, Mr. Scott Aitchison, M.P. Parry Sound-Muskoka, and Mr. Norm Miller, M.P.P. Parry
Sound-Muskoka and Parliamentary Assistant to the Minister of Intergovernmental Affairs.

Carried.

20-100 Moved by Councillor Mead
Seconded by Councillor Ashley

WHEREAS on July 12th Canada had 383 new cases for a total of 108,533 cases; and

WHEREAS all levels of government in Canada are taking responsible measures to prevent the
spread of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS masks or face coverings will be mandatory in the province of Quebec in all indoor
public spaces beginning July 18th; and

WHEREAS The North Bay Parry Sound Public Health Unit will be mandating the use of face
coverings in certain enclosed public spaces effective July 24th; and

WHEREAS the only way to flatten the curve is to continue to rely on all community members to act
responsibly, strictly follow social distancing guidelines, and obey Public Health Unit guidance until
a vaccine for COVID-19 is universally available; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council of the Township of The Archipelago
expresses our sincere thanks all of the public health workers, essential service workers and
Township staff who are supporting our community, the Province and Canada on a daily basis.

Carried.

20-101 Moved by Councillor Walker
Seconded by Councillor Zanussi
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WHEREAS the COVID-19 pandemic has required that the Township of The Archipelago Council
and staff to work remotely and balance the delivery of services with the safety of staff and
residents; and

WHEREAS the health and safety of staff, constituents and the broader community is the primary
priority of the Township of The Archipelago; and

WHEREAS the introduction of health and safety measures, and physical distancing by the
Township of The Archipelago in response to COVID-19, has affected the delivery of services; and

WHEREAS physical distancing and other health and safety measures directly impact Township of
The Archipelago frontline workers in their interactions with constituents and the broader
community; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council acknowledge and commend the
unprecedented efforts of staff and frontline workers to ensure the on-going operations and
services of the Township of The Archipelago; and

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that Council acknowledge and commend the commitment, patience
and service of Township of The Archipelago staff and frontline workers in their interactions with
constituents and the broader community; and
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of The Archipelago will continue to ensure that all
decision-making will be informed by public health directives and best evidence and that the
Township of The Archipelago will use an informed and incremental approach in its on-going
response to COVID-19 and staff operations.
Carried.

Council recessed for lunch at 12:05 p.m. and resumed business at 12:35 p.m.

2020 Write-Offs

20-102 Moved by Councillor Walker
Seconded by Councillor Zanussi

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council authorizes the following grants for the

remainder of 2020:
TOTAL NORTH $17,321.82
TOTAL SOUTH $5,288.93
Carried.
20-103 Moved by Councillor Ashley

Seconded by Councillor Mead

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council authorizes the following tax write-offs for
municipally-owned properties for the remainder of 2020:

TOTAL NORTH $524.14
TOTAL SOUTH $673.46
Carried.
8. BY-LAWS

Crane Lake Discovery Camp — Authorize Amended Site Plan Development Agreement

2020-29 Moved by Councillor Andrews
Seconded by Councillor Frost
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That By-law Number 2020-29, being a By-law to authorize the execution of an amended site plan
development agreement between Crane Lake Discovery Camp, and the Corporatlon of the
Township of The Archipelago, be read and finally passed in Open Council this 16" day of July,
2020.

Carried.

GREEN — Authorize Site Plan Development Agreement

2020-30 Moved by Councillor Emery
Seconded by Councillor Zanussi

That By-law Number 2020-30, being a By-law to authorize the execution of a site plan
development agreement between Michael and Jacquie Green and the Corporation of the
Township of The Archipelago, be read and finally passed this 16" day of July, 2020.

Carried.
Shore Road Allowance By-law
Neilson, Allan and Marilyn
482 Georgian Bay Water
2020-31 Moved by Councillor Barton

Seconded by Councillor Ashley

That By-law Number 2020-31, being a By-law to close and stop up those parts of the original
shore road allowance laid out along the shores of Georgian Bay, in front of Lot 43, Concession 6,
in the geographic Township of Conger, deS|gnated as Part 1 according to Plan 42R-21392, be
read and finally passed in Open Council this 16" day of July, 2020.

Carried.
Shore Road Allowance By-law
Graper, Jeffrey and Gail
484 Blackstone-Crane Lake Road
2020-32 Moved by Councillor Mead

Seconded by Councillor Walker

That By-law Number 2020-32, being a By-law to close and stop up those parts of the original
shore road allowance laid out along the shores of Crane Lake, in front of broken lots 19 and 20,
Concession 9, in the geographic Township of Conger, deS|gnated as Part 2 according to Plan
42R-21352, be read and finally passed in Open Council this 16™ day of July, 2020.

Carried.
Shore Road Allowance By-law
Katerberg, Tim and Leah
Part 1 of 42R-20398
2020-33 Moved by Councillor Zanussi

Seconded by Councillor Barton

That By-law Number 2020- 33, being a By-law to close and stop up those parts of the original
shore road allowance laid out along the shores of Blackstone Lake, in front of broken Lot 15,
Concession 10, in the geographic Township of Conger, demqnated as Part 1 according to Plan
42R-214086, be read and finally passed in Open Council this 16" day of July, 2020.

Carried.

Community Safety Zone
South Shore Road - Pointe au Baril
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2020-34 Moved by Councillor Emery
Seconded by Councillor Andrews

That By-law Number 2020-34, being a By-law to amend By-law 11-43 for the purpose of
extending the Community Safety Zone on the South Shore Road in Pointe au Baril, be read and
finally passed in Open Council this 16" day of July, 2020.

Carried.

Memorandum of Understanding — Shared Geographic System (GIS)/Data Management
Specialist

2020-35 Moved by Councillor Manners
Seconded by Councillor Walker

That By-law Number 2020-35, being a By-law to authorize the Reeve and CAO to Execute a
Memorandum of Understanding with the Township of Seguin regarding a Shared Geographic
Information System (GIS)/Data Management Specialist, be read and finally passed in Open
Council this 16™ day of July, 2020.

Carried.

Discharge of an Interest for the Water Lot included in the Site Plan Agreement — Vincent
Payne Marine Limited

2020-36 Moved by Councillor Frost
Seconded by Councillor Emery

That By-law Number 2020-36, being a By-law to authorize the execution of a Discharge of An
Interest for the water lot included in the Site Plan Agreement between Vincent Payne Marine
Limited and the Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago, be read and finally passed in
Open Council this 16" day of July, 2020.

Carried.
9. QUESTION TIME

Councillor Frost reported on the Bayfield Nares Islanders Association’s initiative to identify and dispose of
derelict and abandoned docks.

Councillor Ashley provided an update on the LCBO letter, which was included in Council
Correspondence. Staff was directed to research the new provincial ruling and report back at a future
meeting.

Councillor Zanussi reported on a District of Social Services Administration Board issue, which could have
a financial impact on the Township due to a property in the Town of Parry Sound being ruled tax exempt
by Municipal Property Assessment Corporation. Staff was directed to investigate and report back at a
future meeting.

Councillor Walker inquired about a possible face to face meeting in August.

Councillor Walker requested that Councillor Frost share the details of Bayfield Nares Islanders
Association’s disposal of abandoned docks initiative with the rest of Council.

Councillor Manners reported that Councillor Sheard recently received the Landmark Award from the
Georgian Bay Land Trust.

Reeve Liverance requested that Staff bring the Strategic Direction Document forward to the August
meeting.

10. CONFIRMING BY-LAW

2020-37 Moved by Councillor Walker
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Seconded by Councillor Sheard
That By-law Number 2020-37, being a By-law to Confirm the Proceedings of the Re%ular Meeting
of Council held on July 16, 2020, be read and finally passed in Open Council this 16" day of July,
2020.
11. ADJOURNMENT

20104 Moved by Councillor Zanussi
Seconded by Councillor Ashley

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Regular Meeting of Council held on July 16",
2020, be adjourned at 1:47 p.m.

Carried.

TOWNSHIP OF THE ARCHIPELAGO

Bert Liverance, Reeve Maryann Weaver, Clerk
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Reeve and Councilors of The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Township of The
Archipelago (the "Township”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2019, and the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus, the
consolidated statement of change in net financial assets and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago as at
December 31, 2019, and its consolidated results of operations, its consolidated change in net financial
assets, and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Township in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Township’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Township or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Township’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

800 Carzda LLP a Canadizn aeniled Haoelity sartnersinp, 15 a vember of BOO nternational Limitedd, a K campeny iimited oy guarantee and (onns part of tre 2
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Township’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Township to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Township to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Township's audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

August 20, 2020
Barrie, Ontario
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The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2019 2018

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $15,620,960 § 5,054,663
Taxes receivable 436,069 501,067
Accounts receivable 372,307 368,260
Portfolio investments (Note 3) - 7,118,603
16,429,336 13,042,593
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 880,607 1,031,166
Employee benefits plan liability (Note 5) 481,170 479,682
Deferred revenue and obligatory reserve funds (Note 6) 281,008 298,056
Net long-term debt (Note 7) 1,940,376 1,818,079
Solid waste closure and post-closure liabilities (Note 8) 113,123 103,477
3,696,284 3,730,460
Net financial assets 12,733,052 9,312,133
Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 10) 33,693,691 34,576,297
Prepaid expenses and inventory 155,535 116,065
33,849,226 34,692,362
Accumulated surplus $46,582,278 S 44,004,495
Commitments (Note 12)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 4
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The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

Year ended December 31

Budget
2019

2019

2018

Revenue
Taxation (Note 11)
Government grants - Federal
Government grants - Provincial
User fees and service charges
Permits, licenses and fines
Investment income
Interest charges on arrears taxes receivable
and tax sale proceeds
Income from other municipalities

Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets

Holiday Cove revenue
Miscellaneous revenue

Expenses
General government
Protection services
Transportation services
Solid waste services
Health services
Social and family services
Recreation and cultural services
Planning and development

Annual surplus

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year

Accumulated surplus, end of year

(Note 14)

$ 8,431,825 $ 8,451,966 $ 7,916,218

150,000 150,133 31,547
1,558,550 2,340,923 1,622,212
155,572 167,006 144,195
183,500 222,962 185,558
200,500 346,539 231,483
101,000 107,779 157,441
134,150 126,026 155,521
- - (68,190)
226,500 188,493 235,700
7,500 27,276 11,303
11,149,097 12,129,103 10,622,988
2,564,840 1,948,263 1,988,321
1,246,101 1,179,848 1,189,133
1,928,347 2,200,394 1,896,551
1,259,304 1,271,843 1,221,352
684,755 690,876 653,214
1,256,162 1,256,162 1,251,293
670,583 652,203 607,962
380,600 351,731 331,928
9,990,692 9,551,320 9,139,754
1,158,405 2,577,783 1,483,234
44,004,495 44,004,495 42,521,261

$45,162,900 $46,582,278 $ 44,004,495

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

Budget
Year ended December 31 2019 2019 2018
(Note 14)
Annual surplus $ 1,158,405 § 2,577,783 S 1,483,234
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,536,000) (675,173) (649,003)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,557,779 1,557,779 1,497,639
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets - - 68,191
1,180,184 3,460,389 2,400,061
Change in prepaid expenses and inventory - (39,470) (13,468)
Increase in net financial assets 1,180,184 3,420,919 2,386,593
Net financial assets, beginning of year 9,312,133 9,312,133 6,925,540
Net financial assets, end of year $ 10,492,317 $12,733,052 S 9,312,133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31 2019 2018

Operating transactions

Annual surplus $ 2,577,783 $ 1,483,234
Items not involving cash
Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,557,779 1,497,639
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 68,191
Changes in non-cash operating balances
Taxes receivable 64,998 166,045
Accounts receivable (4,047) (44,002)
Prepaid expenses and inventories of supplies (39,470) (13,468)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (150,559) {191,649)
Employee benefits plan liability 1,488 56,102
Deferred revenue and obligatory reserve funds (17,048) 32,370
Solid waste closure and post-closure liabilities 9,646 18,548

4,000,570 3,073,010

Capital transactions
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (675,173) (649,003)

Investing transactions
Proceeds on disposition (acquisition) of portfolio investments 7,118,603 (4,106,603)

Financing transactions

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 442,000 204,682

Repayment of long-term debt (319,703) {254,000)

122,297 (49,318)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,566,297 (1,731,914)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 5,054,663 6,786,577

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $15,620,960 S 5,054,663
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 7
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December 31, 2019

The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

Management's
Responsibility

Basis of Consolidation

Basis of Accounting

Non-financial assets

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Portfolio Investments

The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago (the "Township")
is a municipality in the Province of Ontario and operates under the
provisions of the Community Charter. The Township provides
municipal services such as fire, public works, planning, parks,
recreation and other general government services.

The consolidated financial statements of the Township are the
responsibility of management. They have been prepared in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles established by
the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada.

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses of all municipal organizations, committees and
Boards which are owned or controlled by the Township which includes
the following organizations:

Archipelago Area Planning Board 100%
Georgian Cliffs Memorial Park 100%

All inter-entity transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Sources of financing and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in
the period in which the transactions or events occurred that give rise
to the revenues; expenses are recognized in the period the goods or
services are acquired and a legal liability is incurred or transfers are
due.

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities
and are held for use in the provision of services. They have useful
lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale
in the ordinary course of operations.

Management considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of
three months or less at acquisition to be cash equivalents.

Portfolio investments are recorded at cost unless there has been a
decline in the market value which is other than temporary in nature in
which case the investments are written down to market value.
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December 31, 2019

The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Tangible Capital
Assets

Tangible Capital Assets
Under Construction

Collection of Taxes on

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated
amortization. Cost includes all costs directly attributable to
acquisition or construction of the tangible capital asset including
transportation costs, installation costs, design and engineering fees,
legal fees and site preparation costs. Contributed tangible capital
assets are recorded at fair value at the time of the donation, with a
corresponding amount recorded as revenue. Amortization is recorded
on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the tangible capital
asset commencing once the asset is available for productive use as
follows:

Land improvements 15 to 50 years
Buildings 75 years
Building improvements 15 to 20 years
Vehicles and vessels 5 to 15 years
Linear assets 5 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment 10 to 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years
Computer hardware and software 3 to 5 years

Tangible capital assets under construction are recorded at cost. When
construction is completed the tangible capital asset under
construction will be transferred to tangible capital assets and
amortized based on its classification.

Behalf of Other Taxation

Authorities

Pension Plan

Deferred Revenue

The Township collects taxation revenue on behalf of the Near North
District School Board. Such levies, other revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities with respect to the operations of this entity are not
reflected in these financial statements.

The Township is an employer member of the Ontario Municipal
Employees Retirement System (OMERS), which is a multi-employer,
defined benefit pension plan. The Board of Trustees, representing plan
members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the
management of the pension plan, including investment of the assets
and administration of the benefits. The Township has adopted defined
contribution plan accounting principles for this Plan because
insufficient information is available to apply defined benefit plan
accounting principles. The Township records as pension expense the
amount paid to OMERS during the year plus any amounts owing to
OMERS for the year ended.

Funds received for specific purposes which are externally restricted by
legislation, regulation or agreement and are not available for general
municipal purposes are accounted for as deferred revenue on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The revenue is
recognized in the consolidated statement of operations in the year in
which it is used for the specified purpose.
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December 31, 2019

The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Government Transfers Revenue is recognized when the transfer is authorized and any

Revenue Recognition

Solid Waste Landfills

Use of Estimates

Non-pension Post
Retirement Benefits

eligibility criteria are met, except to the extent that transfer
stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a
liability. Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer
stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is recognized in
the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when they meet the
definition of an asset, have been authorized and the taxable event
occurs. For property taxes, the taxable event is the period for which
the tax is levied. Taxes receivable are recognized net of an allowance
for anticipated uncollectable amounts.

User fees and service charges and other revenue are recognized on an
accrual basis, when services have been rendered.

The estimated costs to close and maintain solid waste landfill sites are
based on estimated future expenses in current dollars, discounted,
adjusted for estimated inflation, and are charged to expense as the
landfill site’s capacity is used.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The principal
estimates used in the preparation of these financial statements
include the useful life and valuation of tangible capital assets and
significant accruals such as employee benefits plan. Actual results
could differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.

The Township accrues its obligations under employee benefit plans
as the employees render the services necessary to earn employee
future benefits.

The Township has adopted the following valuation methods and
assumptions:

a) Actuarial cost method:

Accrued benefit obligations are computed using the projected benefit
method prorated on service, as defined in PSAB 3250. The objective
under this method is to expense each member's benefit under the plan
taking into consideration projections of benefit costs to and during
retirement. Under this method an equal portion of total estimated
future benefit is attributed to each year of service.

10
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December 31, 2019

The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Workplace Safety and
Insurance Board

b) Funding policy:

The non-pension post retirement benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-
go basis. The Township funds on a cash basis as benefits are paid. No
assets have been formally segregated and restricted to provide the
non-pension post retirement benefits.

¢) Accounting policies:

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized on a straight line basis over
the expected average remaining service life ('EARSL) of members
expected to receive benefits under the plan, with amortization
commencing in the period following the determination of the gain or
loss. Obligations are attributed to the period beginning on the
member's date of hire and ending on the earlier of the retirement and
the full eligibility date. The Township’s fiscal year-end is December 31
and this is the measurement date of the Township's obligation.

The Township is a schedule 2 employer under the Workplace Safety
and Insurance Board and as such the Township bears the cost of
certain insurance and pension benefits awarded under the workplace
safety and insurance legislation. No future obligations have been
accrued in these consolidated financial statements as Township does
not have a fire department or any ongoing issues and as such WSIB
estimates their future liability as $nil.

11



The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

2, Cash and Cash Equivalents

2019 2018
Unrestricted cash $15,364,019 S 4,706,356
Restricted cash - obligatory reserve fund 72,207 65,746
Designated - reserve fund 101,250 204,663
Designated - cemetery 83,484 77,898

$15,620,960 S 5,054,663

The Township has an operating loan with TD Canada Trust. Interest is charged at a
variable rate at the bank's prime rate minus .75%. The maximum authorized amount is
$2,000,000. The balance outstanding on this credit facility as of December 31, 2019 is
Snil,

3. Portfolio Investments

2019 2018

GICs bearing interest at 2.17% - 2.32%
matured February 2019 ) - § 7,118,603
S - $ 7,118,603

The market value of the portfolio investments as at December 31, 2019 is $nil (2018 -
$7,118,603).

4. Pension Plan

The Township makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
("OMERS"), which is a multi-employer pension plan. The plan is a defined benefit plan,
which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employee
based on length of service and rates of pay. OMERS provides pension services to almost half
a million active and retired members and approximately 1,000 employers. Each year an
independent actuary determines the funding status of OMERS Primary Pension Plan (the
Plan) by comparing the actuarial value of invested assets to the estimated present value of
all pension benefits that members have earned to date. The most recent actuarial
valuation of the Plan was conducted at December 31, 2019. The results of this valuation
disclosed total actuarial liabilities of $107,687 million in respect of benefits accrued for
service with actuarial assets at that date of $104,290 million indicating an actuarial deficit
of $3,397 million. Because OMERS is a multi-employer plan, any pension plan surpluses or
deficits are a joint responsibility of Ontario municipal organizations and their employees.
As a result, the Township does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or
deficit. Contributions made by the Township to OMERS for the year were $202,269 (2018 -
$199,607).

12



The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

Employee Benefits Plan Liability

2019 2018

Accumulated post retirement benefits - accrued obligation § 289,614 § 267,860
Unamortized net actuarial loss (8,017) (9,421)
281,597 258,439

Vacation 199,573 221,243

$ 481,170 §$ 479,682

The post employment benefit expense is reported as a component of expenses on the
statement of operations and accumulated surplus. The expense is comprised of the
following:

2019 2018
Current year benefit cost $ 17,674 § 17,093
Interest on accrued benefit obligation 9,614 8,895
Amortization on actuarial loss 1,404 1,404
Total expense related to post-employment benefits $ 28,692 § 27,392

The amount of post retirement benefits paid during the year were $11,858 (2018 - $5,828).
Retirement Benefits

Retirement Health Care Benefits

The Township provides dental and health care benefits to certain employee groups after
retirement until the members reach 65 years of age. The benefit costs and liabilities
related to this plan are based on an actuarial valuation prepared by an independent firm.
The date of the last actuarial valuation was as of January 1, 2017.

The accrued benefit obligations for the Township's employee future benefit plans as at
December 31, 2019 are based on actuarial valuations for accounting purposes as at January
1, 2017 and forecasted to December 31, 2019. These actuarial valuations were based on
assumptions about future events. The economic assumptions used in these valuations are
management's best estimates of expected rates as follows:

2019 2018

Discount on accrued benefit obligations 3.40% 3.40%
Health care cost escalation - first year 6.00% 6.00%
- decreasing by 0.25% per annum to 4.50% 4,50%

Dental costs escalation 2.75% 2.75%
13
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The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

6. Deferred Revenue and Obligatory Reserve Funds

Externally
restricted
Opening  Contributions investment Revenue Ending
balance received income recognized balance
Federal gas tax 178,381 68,944 4,456 (150,133) § 101,648
Recreational
land 65,869 5,000 1,467 - 72,336
Total Obligatory 244,250 73,944 5,923 (150,133) 173,984
Other 15,665 950 - (540) 16,075
EMS Station - 40,000 - (2,667) 37,333
Henvey Inlet Wind
Project - 17,670 - - 17,670
Main Street
Revitalization 38,141 - 846 (3,041) 35,946
Total 298,056 132,564 6,769 (156,381) § 281,008

Federal gas tax

Gas tax revenue is provided by the Government of Canada. The use of the funding is
established by a funding agreement between the Township and the Province of Ontario.
Gas tax funding may be used towards designated community energy, water, wastewater,
solid waste and capacity building projects as specified in the funding agreements.

Recreational land

The parkland reserve funds have been set aside as required by provincial legislation which
restricts how these funds may be used and, under certain circumstances, how these funds
may be refunded.

Other

Certain donations have been externally restricted by contributors for projects that have
not been completed. These have been deferred until the project is started.

EMS Station
The Township leases an EMS base to The Town of Parry Sound. The Town of Parry Sound
paid an amount upfront to be amortized evenly over the 15 year lease term.

Henvey Inlet Wind Project

Annual contributions from the Henvey Inlet Wind Project are externally restricted for the
estblishment and funding of projects and initiatives that benefit residence or the Township
as per the Community Benefit Agreement.

Main Street Revitalization

Main Street Revitalization Fund is externally restricted by The Association of Municipalities
Ontario and can only be used for eligible projects to support revitalization activities within
main street areas.

14



The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

7. Net Long-term Debt

Net long-term debt reported on the statement of financial position is comprised of the

following:
2019 2018
Debenture advance for Point au Baril Nursing Station;
interest rate of 3.36%, blended semi-annual payments of
$31,361, maturing February 2039 S 891,974 § 466,079

Debenture for Skerryvore Road; interest rate of 3.43%,
blended monthly payments of $37,777, maturing July 2038 1,048,402 1,087,000

Debentures for road projects, interest rates ranging from
4.35% to 4.50%, repaid during the year - 265,000

$ 1,940,376 $ 1,818,079

Principal repayments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2020 S 72,360
2021 75,461
2022 78,047
2023 80,721
2024 83,488
Thereafter 1,550,299

S 1,940,376

The gross interest included in expenditures relating to the above long-term debt was
$65,234 (2018 - $62,757). The above long-term liabilities have been approved by by-law.
The annual principal and interest payments required to service these liabilities are within
the annual debt repayment limit prescribed by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Housing.

15
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The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

Solid Waste Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities

Solid waste closure and post-closure care requirements have been defined in accordance
with industry standards and include final covering and landscaping of the landfill, removal
of ground water and leachates, and ongoing environmental monitoring, site inspection and
maintenance. The present value of the Township’s estimated future liability for this
expense is recognized as the landfill site’s capacity is used. The liability and annual
expense is calculated based on the ratio of utilization to total capacity of the landfill site
and the discounted estimated cash flows associated with closure and post-closure
activities. The reported liability as at year end was $113,123 (2018 - $103,477) and
reflects a discount rate of 3.40% (2018 - 3.40%).

The liability is based on estimates and assumptions related to events extending over the
remaining life of the landfill. The landfill is expected to reach its capacity in 20 years and
the estimated remaining capacity is 24,200 cubic metres which is 36% (2018 - 37%) of the
site's total capacity. The total undiscounted estimated future expenditures for closure and
post-closure care are $175,602 (2018 - $165,511) leaving an amount to be recognized of
$62,479 (2018 - $62,034). The estimated length of time needed for post-closure care is 15
years.

Subsequent Event

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health
emergency because of a new strain of coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the
“COVID-19 outbreak”) and the risks to the international community as the virus spreads
globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19
outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally.

The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report.
As such, it is uncertain as to the full magnitude that the pandemic will have on the
Township’s financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations. Management is
actively monitoring the global situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations,
suppliers, industry, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak and
the global responses to curb its spread, the Township is not able to estimate the effects of
the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity at this
time.
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December 31, 2019

The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. Tangible Capital Assets

2019
Computer
Machinery Hardware
Land Building  Vehicles and and Furniture and Construction

Land Improvements Building Improvements Vessels Linear Assets  Equipment and Fixtures Software in Progress Total
Cost, beginning
of year $ 3,555,422 $ 4,748,760 § 3,042,100 $ 454,732 § 1,354,197 $ 37,151,095 $ 1,665,172 $ 193,561 S 385,997 $ 1,085,873 $ 53,636,909
Additions 140,520 ] : 226,549 L 15330 22,722 270,052 675,173
Disposals . N
Llesic g L 8,874 944,770 253,836 113,689 . 2,529 (1,323,698) -
Cost, end of
year $ 3,555,422 $ 4,898,154 $ 3,986,870 § 454,732 $ 1,354,197 $ 37,631,480 S 1,778,861 S 208,891 S 411,248 $ 32,227 $ 54,312,082
Accumulated
amortization,
beginning of
year $ -8 915,600 $ 803,526 $ 221,188 $ 894,717 § 14,421,447 § 1,319,594 $ 153,715 §$ 330,825 § - § 19,060,612
Amortization 5 120,029 68,108 20,108 100,739 1,069,020 135,081 12,601 32,093 - 1,557,779
Disposals i} . . ; . .
Accumulated
amortization,
end of year 5 - § 1,035,629 $ 871,634 S 241,296 S 995,456 $ 15,490,467 $ 1,454,675 $ 166,316 $ 362,918 $ - $ 20,618,391
Net carrying
amount, end of
year $ 3,555,422 $ 3,862,525 $ 3,115,236 § 213,436 S 358,741 $ 22,141,013 $ 324,186 $ 42,575 § 48,330 $ 32,227 S 33,693,691
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The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

10. Tangible Capital Assets (continued)

2018
Computer
Machinery Hardware
Land Building Vehicles and and Furniture and Construction

Land Improvements Buildings Improvements Vessels Linear Assets  Equipment and Fixtures Software  in Progress Total
Cost, beginning
of year $ 3,555,422 § 4,769,190 $ 3,078,720 $ 469,579 $ 1,300,133 $ 36,861,421 S 1,686,491 S 194,294 $ 600,780 $ 924,133 $ 53,440,163
Additions - : 27,153 54,064 289,674 20,898 13,505 28,955 214,754 649,003
Disposals {20,430) (89,633) (42,000) - . (42,218) (14,238)  (243,738) - (452,257)
Transfer of WIP _ ! 53.014 3 ) ; ) ) _ (53,014)
Cost, end of
year $ 3,555,422 $ 4,748,760 S 3,042,101 S 454,732 $ 1,354,197 § 37,151,095 $ 1,665,171 S 193,561 S 385,997 § 1,085,873 $ 53,636,909
Accumulated
amortization,
beginning of
year $ -8 817,764 § 791,612 § 243,532 $ 794,084 S 13,373,886 $ 1,226,106 $ 157,488 S 542,567 §$ - $ 17,947,039
Amortization 118,266 40,208 19,656 100,633 1,047,561 135,706 10,465 25,144 - 1,497,639
Disposals (20,430) (28,294) (42,000) - - (42,218) (14,238)  (236,886) - (384,066)
Accumulated
amortization,
eqs[eiveay s -8 915,600 S 803,526 § 221,188 $ 894,717 $§ 14,421,447 § 1,319,594 $ 153,715 $ 330,825 §$ - $ 19,060,612
Net carrying
amount, end of
year $ 3,555,422 $ 3,833,160 S 2,238,575 S 233,544 § 459,480 S 22,729.648 S 345577 S 39,846 $ 55,172 § 1,085,873 S 34,576,297

The net book value of tangible capital assets not being amortized because they are under construction (or development or have been
removed from service) is $32,227 (2018 -$1,085,873).

18



The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

11. Taxation
Budget
2019 2019 2018
(Note 14)
Property taxes $11,773,689 $11,792,763 $ 11,372,645
Payments to school board (3,341,864) (3,340,797) (3,456,427)

Available for general municipal purposes $ 8,431,825 § 8,451,966 S 7,916,218

12. Commitments

The Township has two agreements with the Township of Seguin Fire Department for fire
protection services.

Crane Lake Area: the term of the agreement is five years expiring December 31, 2024. The
total cost is based on number of properties and approximates $52,000 per year.

Blackstone Lake Area: the term of the agreement is five years expiring March 31, 2022. The
total cost is based on number of properties and approximates $30,000 per year.

The Township has also entered into an agreement subsequent to year end to purchase a
2020 Freightliner for the cost of $323,318.

13.

Contributions to Unconsolidated Joint Boards

The following contributions were made to these joint boards:

2019 2018
North Bay Parry Sound Health Unit S 26,453 S 21,288
District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board 921,823 920,849
District of Parry Sound (West) Belvedere Heights
Home for the Aged 334,339 330,444

The Township is contingently liable for its share of any accumulated deficits as at the end
of the year for these boards. As of our reporting date, the 2019 audited financial
statements indicate that the boards have a surplus.

19
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The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

14. Budget

The Financial Plan (Budget) By-Law adopted by Council on April 26, 2019 was not prepared
on a basis consistent with that used to report actual results (Public Sector Accounting
Standards). The budget was prepared on a modified accrual basis while Public Sector
Accounting Standards require a full accrual basis. The budget figures anticipated use of
surpluses accumulated in previous years to reduce current year expenditures in excess of
current year revenues to Snil. In addition, the budget expensed all tangible capital
expenditures rather than including amortization expense. As a result, the budget figures
presented in the consolidated statements of operations and change in net financial assets
represent the Financial Plan adopted by Council on April 26, 2019 with adjustments as
follows:

2019
Financial Plan (Budget) Bylaw surplus for the year $
AddC:apital expenditures 1,536,000
Budgeted transfers to accumulated surplus
I_eS;.udgeted transfers from accumulated surplus 1,180,184
Amortization (1,557,779)
Budget surplus per statement of operations S 1,158,405

15.

Segmented Information

The Township is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range
of services to its citizens such as police, fire and water and roads.  Distinguishable
functional segments have been separately disclosed in the segmented information. The
nature of the segments and the activities they encompass are as follows:

General Government

This item is related to the revenues and expenses that relate to the operations of the
Township itself and cannot be directly attributed to a specific segment. As well, bio forest,
water quality, fish management and environmental issues are included in this segment.

Protection to Persons and Property

Protection is comprised of fire prevention, building inspections, by-law enforcement and
police. The township does not have a fire department, however it has negotiated
contracts with other municipalities for limited vehicle/vessel rescues in certain areas.
Forest fires not including structural fires is by agreement with the Ministry of Natural
Resources. Fire prevention and education programs are delivered by the Township. The
Township pays a levy for the Ontario Provincial Police.
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The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

15. Segmented Information (continued)

Transportation
Transportation is responsible for maintaining and upgrading roads in the Township.

Solid Waste
Solid waste services consists of providing waste disposal to citizens.

Health

Health services are comprised of public health unit which works to improve the overall
health of the population and overcome health inequalities by providing services to
individuals and communities. Health services also oversee the care and maintenance of the
cemetery.

Social and Family Services
Social service provides services that help the less fortunate in society. Social housing is
provided to help shelter families and elderly in need.

Recreation and Culture

Recreational programs and cultural programs like seniors’ walking group, pickleball, euchre,
church etc. are provided at the community centre. The Township provides dock facilities
including a marina for its residents. Also, the Municipality provides library services through
a contract with the Parry Sound Public Library Board to assist with its citizens'
informational needs.

Planning and Development
This department provides a number of services including severances, zonings and review of
all property development plans through its application process.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary
of significant accounting policies. In measuring and reporting segment revenue from
transactions with other segments, inter-segment transfers are measured on the basis of
cost. Amounts that are directly attributable to a number of segments have been allocated
on a reasonable basis as follows:

Taxation, fees and user charges allocated to those segments that are
funded by these amounts based on the
net surplus for the year

Grants based on nature of grant
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The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

15. Segmented Information (continued)

Protection to

For the year ended General persons and Social and Recreation and Planning and 2019
December 31 government property Transportation Solid Waste Health  family services culture development Total
Revenue
Taxation S 1,582,314 § 968,274 $ 2,195,328 § 1,115,450 $ 642,930 § 1,256,162 S 438,794 S 252,714 § 8,451,966
Government grants -
Federal 150,133 - . . - . - - 150,133
Government grants -
Provincial 2,192,221 - - 116,275 - - 15,072 17,355 2,340,923
User fees and service
charges 13,873 - 104 40,118 41,755 - 10 71,146 167,006
Permits, licenses and fines 10,892 211,320 750 . . - - - 222,962
Investment income 343,453 . - 1,770 1,316 346,539
Interest charges and tax
sale proceeds 107,134 254 - - . . 391 - 107,779
Income from other
municipalities 126,026 - . - - - 126,026
Holiday Cove revenue - . - . . - 188,493 - 188,493
Miscellaneous revenue - - 4,212 - 4,421 - 9,443 9,200 27,276
4,526,046 1,179,848 2,200,394 1,271,843 690,876 1,256,162 652,203 351,731 12,129,103
Expenses
Salaries and benefits 1,099,783 293,473 594,543 623,971 495 - 173,474 285,989 3,071,728
Supplies and services 591,493 152,425 379,423 511,961 7,272 - 188,418 65,742 1,896,734
Interest - . 43,881 - 16,354 . . - 65,235
Fee and contract services 182,948 723,001 - 14,277 637,797 1,256,162 145,659 - 2,959,844
Amortization 74,039 10,949 1,177,547 121,634 28,958 - 144,652 - 1,557,779
1,948,263 1,179,848 2,200,394 1,271,843 690,876 1,256,162 652,203 351,731 9,551,320
Net surplus $ 2,577,783 § - § - 5 - S = § ) = § - $ 2,577,783
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December 31, 2019

The Corporation of the Township of The Archipelago
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. Segmented Information (continued)

Protection to

For the year ended General persons and Social and family Recreation and Planning and 2018
December 31 government property Transportation Solid Waste Health services culture development Total
Revenue
Taxation S 1,538,148 § 1,006,410 S 1,739,790 S 1,082,834 § 677,289 $ 1,251,293 § 373,471 246,983 S 7,916,218
Government grants -
Federal - 31,547 - - 31,547
Government grants -
Provincial 1,367,100 - 121,597 101,088 15,072 17,355 1,622,212
User fees and service
charges 29,017 2,625 738 37,430 3,112 4,422 66,851 144,195
Permits, licenses and fines 5,820 179,438 300 . . - - - 185,558
Investment income 226,789 - 2,579 - 1,376 - 739 231,483
Interest charges and tax
sale proceeds 156,011 660 . - 770 157,441
Income from other
municipalities 155,521 - - - - 155,521
Loss on disposal of tangible
capital assets (6,851) - (33,265) - (28,074) (68,190)
Holiday Cove revenue - - - - - 235,700 - 235,700
Miscellaneous revenue - - 4,702 - 6,601 11,303
3,471,555 1,189,133 1,896,551 1,221,352 653,214 1,251,293 607,962 331,928 10,622,988
Expenses
Salaries and benefits 1,103,929 292,858 446,578 581,424 113 - 173,361 279,573 2,877,836
Supplies and services 657,099 149,562 246,704 490,182 14,524 - 173,688 52,355 1,784,114
Interest - - 48,991 - 11,270 - - - 60,261
Fee and contract services 165,419 733,220 - 13,970 625,715 1,251,293 130,287 - 2,919,904
Amortization 61,874 13,493 1,154,278 135,776 1,592 - 130,626 - 1,497,639
1,988,321 1,189,133 1,896,551 1,221,352 653,214 1,251,293 607,962 331,928 9,139,754
Net surplus S 1,483,234 § - $ S - S - - 1,483,234
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TO: Chair Frost and Members of the Planning & Building Committee

FROM: Cale Henderson, MCIP, RPP
Manager of Development & Environmental Services
Jane Nawroth
Planning Assistant

DATE: August 20", 2020

RE: RESZCZYNSKI, Daniel
Site Plan Development Agreement

Sandy & Martyr Islands Neighbourhood

BACKGROUND

The subject property, Lot 1 on Plan M-346, designated as remaining Parcel 21351
Parry Sound South Section, together with Block A on Plan M-346, Sandy Island, in
front of the geographic Township of Cowper (Sandy & Martyr Islands
Neighbourhood) is currently vacant and the owners wish to develop it. Sandy Island
is under site plan control, and as such, a site plan development application must be
submitted and an agreement registered on title.

A copy of the application is attached a Appendix ‘A’ and draft copy of the Site Plan
Development Agreement is attached as Appendix ‘B’.

PLANNING INFORMATION

Ward: 4

Official Plan Neighbourhood: Sandy & Martyr Islands

Zoning: Coastal/lsland Residential Exception 41 (CR-41)
Lot Area: 2.47 hectares (6.1 acres)

Frontage: +/- 238 metres (781 feet)

.12
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Planning Report
Site Plan (SP03-19)
(RESZCZYNSKI, Daniel)

LOCATION MAP
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POLICY REVIEW

The proposal, for a dock, 50 square metre (54f square feet) main dwelling complies
with Comprehensive Zoning By-law No. A2000-07, as amended. The proposed
location of the development is in accordance with the environmental assessment
(appendix B), completed by Birks Natural Heritage Consultants.

There were preliminary concerns with the location of the grey water pit and
outhouse; however after multiple inspections, the owners have appeared to locate
an appropriate location, in conformity with the Ontario Building Code.
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Pianning Report
Site Plan (SP03-19)
(RESZCZYNSKI, Daniel)

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Council approves the proposed development and enters into
the attached site plan development agreement to be registered on title to the lands.

Respectfully submitted,

(b XA e 0

Cale Hendersan, MCIP, RPP Jane Nawroth, Planning Assistant
Mgr of Development & Environmental Services '\
-3-
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APPENDIX ‘A’
APPLICATION
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Date Received Complete Application [] Yes []No Application No.g@S' (q'

Date Accepted Applicable Fee Paid [ Yes [ No

9 James Street QF % . H
Parry Sound, Ontario ARCH!FJELAGO QEVEIOpment Appllcatlon
P2A 174 for Lands Subject to Site Plan Control
ks § R JUL 08 2019 under Section 41 of the Planning Act
web: www.thearchipelago.on.ca R.5.0.1990, c.P. 13, as amended
P PLANNING
[ surome |
OFFICEUSEONLY ™

1.

2.

Applicant / Agent Information
Name of Applicant / Agent

\ameL Qeszc'z l/r\S'f(

AdArace
City -~ Province / State Postal / Zip Code
Home Phone N¢ * Business Phone No. ___.. nail ‘ '
ST S S N — — =R A - ' =
Owner(s) Information
Name of Owner(s
b Q eS2C2 l/ AS!(
Address
— e o o 9 -
City Province / State Postal / Zip Code -
Home Phone No. Business Phone No. . email

— - .(a_-...u_.—,_ o~

¢
Please advise to whom all communication should be directed.  [] Owner [0 Applicant/ Agent

. Purpose of the Application (check appropriate box)
i ;construction of new bulding(s) [J addition to existing building(s) [ convert use of existing building(s)

[] enlarge existing waterlot and/or docking facilities Ijénstruct new docking facilities

[[] establish new use Other 6 fe y LU:?A er Pt_!"

Describe the nature and purpose of the proposed development.

G»'n@JrrumL (6"x20’ coHagf’ ; Vg Hmf\mﬂ Oﬁfu{.'S
lf;)( g(alw\ (L' x 16 hoth Olecl'f.(' Cou..es"-e,c;! ’FOF g/

4. Location of the Subject Land (please provide a copy of the Transfer/Deed of Land)

Assessment Roll Number 4905- (0000 02702 000 ot Concession Istand No. SB Nl!’ fg
Registered Plan of Subdivision No. (if any) Plan No. M - 3Ub Lot No. 1

i Surve
Reference Plan No. (if any) Plan No. 42R - M 2 u é qucj\pA Part No.

Parcel No. Hz 5]  Other Description Pl“ 5;\4)13[ L'{' I
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. Service Information (check appropriate box)
Access

[ Provincial Highway [ Municipal road, maintained all year [J Municipal road, maintained seasonally

[J Otherpublicroad [ Right-of-way Water Access (see below)

If access to the subject land is by private road, or if by "other public road" or "right-of-way", indicate who owns
the land or road, who is responsible for its maintenance and whether it is maintained seasonally or all year.

If access to the subject land is by water, describe the parking and docking facilities and the approximate
distance of these facilities from the subject land and the nearest public road.

Oﬁl,( 0c)u{\|' Malfma S 3 K eamL n1L’
H-Q ﬁm npr+v

. Land Use and Zoning

What is the existing zoning of the subject land?

Cr Y\ ES )

What are the existing uses on the subject land? What date was the use established?

Vacant  land

What are the proposed uses on the subject land? What date are the uses proposed to commence?

COHM\\IP — W8e CammentesS crpﬁr bu.'/a(

. Development Information (complete all applicable sections & attach Site Plan as required under Section 10)

Dimensions of

S:]m! 'ZZtlg:os erty: Depth (metres) Q"{ g Frontage (metres) gﬂl 0 Area (hectares) :l L\7
averaae cdepth

BUILDINGS ON SUBJECT LAND (not lncludlng uncovered decks)
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7. Development Information (cont'd)

STRUCTURES ON SUBJECT LAND (including decks, tennis courts etc.

iU

:Deck {ear R/ < /;_WA”/ |m [ 114 | 11,64

BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES ON ADJACENT CROWN LAKE BED (including docks and boathouses)

& T3 5 i (TR T

S
|

8. Current Applications

Is the land currently the subject of an application for an Official Plan amendment, Zoning By-law amendment,
Minor Variance, Consent or approval of a Plan of Subdivision or Condominium?

[ VYes X No [0 Unknown

If YES and if known, specify the appropriate file number and status of the application(s).
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9. Other Information

Is there any other information that you think may be useful to the Township in reviewing the application? If
50, explain below or attach a separate page.

-Tilﬂe Qv éa m[ d?uﬁlﬁpmm’lL = hO‘TL foffﬂl‘oo/

10. Plans (to assist in the preparation of plans, please refer to the attached sample sketch)

11.

w\J[l\ A '.er ES| ?Oﬂ& UTM COUI"A:MI‘?S ﬂmwaJ 760/

busld areo.
. €owr corner <
Location Plan

Every application shall be accompanied by a location plan, drawn to an appropriate scale, properly dimensioned and

showing thereon:

- the boundaries of the parcel of land that is the subject of the application, the part of the parcel that is the subject of
the application, the location of all adjacent properties and/or islands, transportation routes, etc.;

- the distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or
bridge;

- existing and proposed uses on the subject land (e.g. residential, agricultural, cottage, commercial etc.);

- existing uses of all lands within 120 metres (400 feet) of the subject land.

Site Plan

Every application shall be accompanied by a site plan, drawn to an appropriate scale, properly dimensioned and

showing thereon:

- the boundaries and dimensions of the subject land and the part that is the subject of this application;

- the boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject
land;

- the location and dimensions of existing and proposed buildings and structures and their distances from lot lines;

- the approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that, in the
opinion of the applicant, may affect the application, such as railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or
stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas, wells and septic tanks, landscaped open spaces, planting strips, parking
areas, loading areas, driveways and walkways;

- the existing uses on adjacent lands;

- the location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened
road allowance, a publicly travelled road, a private road or a right-of-way;

- if access to the subject land is by water only, the location of the parking and boat docking facilities used;

- the location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land.

Additional information, including architectural drawings and elevations, shall be furnished by the applicant
at the request of the Township.

Affidavit or Sworn Declaration

EVIDENCE ACT.

—
Dated at the ! this %day of IULN/ .20 ll
A : ' f !

[, D ni ; i/ € of the in the

County/District/Regional Municipality of A solemnly declare that all the statements
contained in this application are true, and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing it to be
true, and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under oath and by virtue of the CANADA

i

DECLARED BEFORE ME atthe . of £

inthe_QAMW of O/‘\AUA_’(AM‘U/ thISJ day of /rz\ﬂaé ,2019.
G h_ 9

A Cobfrﬁs_sjp_uerd\"ﬁaths S|gnature of Owner@authorlzed Applicant/ Agent

MarloJ. PaivaBA., LLB, .
Lawyer / Advopadits

MARIO J. PAIVABA., LL.B.
Barrister and Solicitor

170 Dundas Street West, Suite 210
Torente, Ontario M¢J 1 X4
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12. Authorizations

Authorization of Owner(s) for Agent to Make the Application

if the applicant is not the owner of the land that is the subject of this application, authorization for the
agent to make this application, as set out below, must be given. Alternatively, written authorization can
be provided on a separate form and submitted with this application. Authorization must be provided by
all registered owners of the subject property.

1/We, , am/are the owner(s) of the land

that is the subject of this application and I/we authorize

to make this application on my/our behalf.

Date Signature of Owner
Date Signature of Owner
Date Signature of Owner
Date Signature of Owner

Authorization of Owner(s) for Agent to Provide Personal Information

If the applicant is not the owner of the land that is the subject of this application, authorization for the
agent to provide personal information, as set out below, must be given. Alternatively, written
authorization can be provided on a separate form and submitted with this application. Authorization
must be given by all registered owners of the subject propeérty.

|/We, , am/are the owner(s) of the

land that is the subject of this application and for the purposes of the Freedom of Information and

Protection of Privacy Act, l/we authorize as my/our agent
for this application, to provide any of my/our personal information that will be included in this

application or collected during the process of the application.

Date Signature of Owner
Date Signature of Owner
Date Signature of Owner
Date Signature of Owner

13. Consent of the Owner(s) to the Use and Disclosure of Personal Information

All registered owners of the subject property must provide their consent concerning the disclosure of
personal information, as set out below.

I/We, :Dan‘l(" L JQQS 22V S/(J , am/are the owner(s) of the
land that is the subject of this applicatioﬁ' and for the purposes of the Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act, |/we authorize and consent to the use by or the disclosure to any person or public
body of any personal information that is collected under the authority of the Planning Act for the purposes
of processing this application.

L
Date CY\AL 0»(\) q 9-0' O! Signature owanerr'l__ D—ﬁ

Date Signature of Owner

Date Signature of Owner

Date Signature of Owner L" ‘
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SITE PLAN DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF THE ARCHIPELAGO

SITE PLAN DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of , 2020.

BETWEEN:

RESZCZYNSKI, Daniel
(hereinafter called the "OWNER)

-and -
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF THE ARCHIPELAGO

(hereinafter called the "TOWNSHIP")

WHEREAS the OWNER is the owner of the subject lands in the Township of The
Archipelago, in the District of Parry Sound, more particularly described in Schedule “A”
attached hereto;

AND WHEREAS the OWNER has applied to the TOWNSHIP to permit development
on the OWNER'S lands;

AND WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 41 of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, ¢. P.13,
as amended (the “Planning Act”}, the Council of the TOWNSHIP, by By-law No. 90-90, has
designated the said lands as being within a site plan control area;

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that, in consideration of the
sum of Two Dollars ($2.00) now paid by each of the parties to the other (the receipt
whereof is hereby acknowledged), and other good and valuable consideration, the parties
agree as follows:

SECTION 1: LANDS SUBJECT TO THE AGREEMENT

1.1 The lands to be bound by this Agreement (hereinafter referred to as “the subject
lands”), are described in Schedule “A” hereto.

SECTION 2: COMPONENTS OF THE AGREEMENT

2.1 Thetext, consisting of Sections 1 through 8, and the following Schedules, which are
annexed hereto, constitute the components of this Agreement:

Schedule “A™- Legal Desctiption of the Lands
Schedule “B"- Site Plan

Schedule “C’- Flood Plain Site Plan
Schedule ‘D" - Environmental Impact Study

13



SECTION 3: REGISTRATION OF THE AGREEMENT

3.1

32

The OWNER agrees that all documents required herein shall be submitted in a form
suitable to the TOWNSHIP and suitable for registration.

The Agreement shall be registered on title to the subject lands as provided for by
Section 41(10) of the Planning Act, by the Township, at the expense of the
OWNER.

SECTION 4: ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS

41

4.2

The OWNER agrees to not request the Chief Building Official to issue a building
permit to carry out the development until the Agreement has been registered on title
to the subject lands and a registered copy of same has been provided to the
TOWNSHIP.

It is agreed that if the OWNER fails to apply for a building permit or permits to
implement this Agreement within two (2) years after registration, then the
TOWNSHIP, at its option, has the right to terminate the Agreement and require that
a new Site Plan Agreement be submitted for approval and execution.

SECTION 5: PROVISIONS

5.1

52

5.3

54

55

56

The OWNER agrees to develop the subject lands in accordance with the Site Plan
being Schedule “B” attached hereto, and agrees that no work will be performed on
the subject lands except in conformity with all provisions of this Agreement.

The OWNER agrees that external lighting facilities on the subject lands and
buildings will be designed and constructed so as to avoid, wherever possible, the
illumination of adjacent properties and waterways.

The OWNER agrees that removal of any vegetation, grading or removal of soils,
rock structures, placement of fill or soil, or any other site alteration will only occur
within the 'buildable area’ of the building envelope(s). The removal of any
vegetation, grading, or removal of soils, rock structures, placement of fill or soil, or
any other site alteration within the building envelopes will be minimized.

The OWNER agrees access routes for dock and cottage connections as well as
construction access must avoid the significant features identified within the
environmental report.

The OWNER agrees to provide and maintain appropriate construction mitigation
measures during any construction activity, in accordance with the Environmental
Impact Study, Sandy Island Seasonal Residential, (Birks Natural Heritage
Consultants): December 2019, to ensure that there are no adverse environmental
impacts.

The OWNER agrees that construction mitigation measures must be implemented to
ensure the natural features, their buffer areas, and significant wildlife habitats are
protected during the construction of all buildings and structures. The following
mitigation measures, as outlined in Section 6 Recommendations and Mitigation
Measures of the Environmental Impact Study, shall apply:

e Construction and site alteration is not to occur during bird breeding/nesting
season. Vegetation removal is to be avoided between April 1st and August
30th of any given year; If vegetation clearing is required between these
dates, screening by an ecologist with knowledge of bird species present in
the area could be undertaken to ensure that the vegetation has been
confirmed to be free of nests prior to clearing;

e Areas disturbed for development must be restored immediately following
development;
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* Erosion and sediment control measures be incorporated to minimize impacts
beyond the work area;

¢ Clean Equipment protocot is to be utilized to avoid accidental transference of
seeds or other sources of invasive plants/animals (i.e. Phragmites);

¢ Land owner/developer is responsible to ensure compliance with regulations
made under the Endangered Species Act;

The OWNER further agrees that the Site Plan, Schedule “B”, shows the location in
which the building and septic are to be erected. Except for minor deviations
necessitated by conditions, topography, and deviations for structural orientation, no
building will be located on the subject lands except in accordance with Schedule
“B”.

SECTION 6: OTHER REQUIREMENTS

6.1

The OWNER agrees that nothing in this Agreement shall relieve him from complying
with all other applicable agreements, by-laws, laws or regulations of the TOWNSHIP
or any other laws, regulations or policies established by any other level of
government. Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the TOWNSHIP or its Chief
Building Official from instituting or pursuing prosecutions in respect of any violations
of the said by-laws, laws or regulations.

SECTION 7: BINDING PARTIES, ALTERATION, AMENDMENT, EFFECT, PENALTY

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

This Agreement may only be amended or varied by a written document executed by
the parties hereto and registered against the title to the subject lands.

Following the completion of the works, the OWNER shall maintain to the satisfaction
of the TOWNSHIP, and at his sole expense, all the facilities or works described on
Schedule(s) “B”.

This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the respective
successors and assigns of each of the parties hereto.

The OWNER acknowledges that the Agreement is entered into under the provisions
of Section 41(10) of the Planning Act, and that the expenses of the TOWNSHIP
arising out of the enforcement of this Agreement may, in addition to any other
remedy the Township may have at law, be recovered as taxes under Section 427 of
the Municipal Act, 2001, S.0. 2001, ¢.25 as amended.

The Agreement shall come into effect on the date of execution by the TOWNSHIP.
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SECTION 8: NOTICE

8.1 Any notice, required to be given pursuant to the terms hereto, shall be in writing and
mailed or delivered to the other at the following addresses:

OWNER’S NAME AND ADDRESS;

TOWNSHIP:

Daniei Reszczynski
217 Bering Avenue
Toronto, ON M8Z 3A4

Clerk

Township of The Archipelago
9 James Street

Parry Sound, ON P2A 1T4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the OWNER and the TOWNSHIP have caused their corporate
seals to be affixed over the signatures of their respective signing officers.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED
In the presence of:

Witness

Daniel Reszczynski

THE CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF THE ARCHIPELAGO

Reeve
Bert Liverance

Clerk
Maryann Weaver



SCHEDULE "A™

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE LANDS

Lot 1 on Plan M-346, designated as remaining Parce! 21351 Parry Sound South Section,
together with Block A on Plan M-348, Sandy Island, in front of the geographic Township of
Cowper

PIN 52185-0131
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SCHEDULE "D"

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STUDY
BIRKS NATURAL HERITAGE CONSULTANTS
December 21, 2019




Prepared By:

BI3

NATURAL HERITAGE CONSULTANTS

Environmental Impact Study
Sandy Island Seasonal Residential

Project No. 02-010-2019

December 21, 2019

23 HERRELL AVENUE, BARRIE ON L4N 6T5
WWW.BIRKSNHC.CA

bl



23 Herrell Avenue
Barrie, Ontario
L4N 6T5

EllR

NATURAL HERITAGE CONSULTANTS

December 21, 2019

Daniel Reszczynski
217 Bering Avenue
Etobicoke, Ontario
M8Z 3A4

RE: BIRKS NHC 02-010-2019
Environmental Impact Study
Part of Sandy Island being Lot 1 on Plan M346, Cowper, Township of the Archipelago

Dear Mr. Reszczynski,

Thank you for retaining Birks Natural Heritage Consultants, Inc. (Birks NHC) to prepare an
Environmental Impact Study (EIS) for the property identified as Part of Sandy Island being Lot 1
on Plan M346, Cowper in the Township of the Archipelago. It is our understanding that an EIS
has been requested by the Township of the Archipelago to ensure conformity and consistency
with the Official Plan and the Provincial Policy Statement.

Site specific data was collected by Birks NHC staff during a single site visit in the 2019 field
season. This report outlines the process to determine which features are considered important
natural heritage features and an assessment of potential impacts associated with the proposed
activity. Where potential impacts are identified, mitigation measures are proposed to reduce
the potential impacts that could result to those identified. Assuming the mitigation measures
recommended in this report are implemented there is no expectation that natural heritage
features or functions associated with the study area defined herein would be negatively
impacted.
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If you have any questions or concern regarding this report, please do not hesitate to contact the
undersigned.

Yours truly,

Birks Natural Heritage Consultants Inc.

~

-

# %///
ad Baker, H. B. Sc.
Ecologist
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Sandy Island Seasonal Residential BIRKS NHC 02-010-2019

1 INTRODUCTION

Birks Natural Heritage Consultants, Inc. (Birks NHC) was retained by Mr. Daniel Reszczynski (the property
owner) to undertake an Environmental Impact Study (EIS) for the lands identified Part of Sandy Island
being Lot 1 on Plan M346, Cowper in the Township of the Archipelago.

1.1 PURPOSE

The objective of the EIS is to identify the potential functions associated with natural heritage features
present on the property and determine if potential impacts to those functions could arise from the
proposed activity. The assessment is focused on potential ecological impacts which could result from a
proposed seasonal residential development on the property. It is our understanding that the Township
of the Archipelago (the Township) is aware of the application and has requested this EIS to ensure
conformity with the Official Plan for the Township and the Provincial Policy Statement.

1.2 SITE DESCRIPTION

The property is a lot of record located on the southeast shore of Sandy Island which is situated in
Georgian Bay, roughly 15 km west of Parry Sound. The property is currently undeveloped and
dominated by forest and wetland areas. A high point is present in the central portion of the property
that currently extends out into the lake due to high water levels. A floating dock was present along the
north shore of the high central shoreline area of the property at the time of the site assessment which is
also evident in air photos available through Google Maps.

1.3  ADJACENT LAND USE

The majority of Sandy Island appears to be undeveloped similar to the property. Small seasonal
residential properties are present within existing lots to the south of the property and to the north end
of the island. The landscape along the west shore of the island is notably rockier with the sheltered bays
on the east side of the island representing ideal fish habitat in the flooded grasses and thicket swamps
under the current high-water levels and areas of coastal marsh under low water levels.

1.4 STuDY AREA

For the purpose of this EIS, the study area is focussed approximately 120 m surrounding the property
illustrated in Figure 1. The Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry published the Natural Heritage
Reference Manual (MNR, 2010) to provide technical guidance for the implementation of the natural
heritage policies of the Provincial Policy Statement, 2014 (PPS) which outlines a distance of 120 meters
for use in consideration of impacts to adjacent features. To allow for the consideration of any other
Natural Heritage Features in the area a landscape level screening was also undertaken through a review
of air photos within approximately one kilometre surrounding the study area.

BIRKS Naturat Heritage Consultants
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2 POLICY FRAMEWORK

The following summarizes the planning policies and regulations related to natural heritage that apply to
the proposed activity.

2.1  PROVINCIAL PLANNING STATEMENT (2014)
Ontario's Planning Act, 1990 requires that planning decisions shall be consistent with the PPS.

Section 2.1 of the PPS stipulates policy for the protection of natural heritage features and functions as
follows:
Development and site alteration shall not be permitted in:

a) Significant wetlands in Ecoregions 5E, 6E; and 7E; and

b) Significant coastal wetlands.

Unless it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their
ecological functions, development and site alteration shall not be permitted in:

a) Significant woodlands in Ecoregions 6E; and 7E;

b) Significant valleylands in Ecoregions 6E; and 7E;

c) Significant wildlife habitat {SWH);

d) Significant areas of natural and scientific interest; and

e) Coastal wetlands in Ecoregions 5E, 6E; and 7E that are not subject to policy 2.1.4(b)

Development and site alteration shall not be permitted in fish habitat or habitat of endangered or
threatened species except in accordance with provincial and federal requirements.

Development and site alteration shall not be permitted on adjacent lands to the natural heritage
features and areas identified above unless the ecological function of the adjacent lands has been
evaluated and it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the natural heritage
features or on their ecological function.

While many of these features are mapped and direction is available to allow for candidate features and
functions to be identified, it remains the responsibility of the Province and/or the Municipality to
designate areas identified within Section 2.1.4 and 2.1.5 of the PPS as significant. The Natural Heritage
Reference Manual (MNR, 2010) and Ecoregion 5E Significant Wildlife Habitat Criterion Schedule (MNRF,
2015) were used within this report to identify candidate features and functions not currently identified
by the province and/or municipality.

2.2 ENDANGERED SPECIES AcCT, 2007

Ontario’s Endangered Species Act, 2007 (ESA) provides regulatory protection for Endangered and
Threatened species. The ESA prohibits harassment, harm and/or killing of individuals and destruction of
their habitats. Habitat is broadly characterized within the ESA as the area prescribed by a regulation as
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the habitat of the species, or, an area on which the species depends, directly or indirectly, to carry on its
life processes including reproduction, rearing of young, hibernation, migration or feeding.

Ontario Regulation (O. Reg.) 230/08 of the ESA identify Species at Risk in Ontario. These include species
listed as Extirpated Endangered, Threatened, and Special Concern. As noted above, only species listed
as Endangered and Threatened receive species and habitat protection through the ESA. Species
designated as Special Concern may receive protection under the Significant Wildlife Habitat provisions
of the PPS.

2.3 TOWNSHIP OF THE ARCHIPELAGO
Section 7 of the Township Official Plan provides policy direction for the protection of Cultural and
Natural Heritage Features. The Official Plan required consideration of the following features specifically:
¢ The Sandy Island wetland is identified as a coastal and Provincially Significant Wetland which
must be considered due to the presence of the feature in the adjacent land.
» The aquatic habitat surrounding the property is mapped as Category 1 Fish Habitat
o Generally, the Township requires a 15 metre setback from Georgian Bay to assist in the
protection of fish habitat.
» Development and site alteration shall not be permitted in habitat of endangered or threatened
species except in accordance with provincial and federal requirements.
+ Development and site alteration shall not be permitted in identified significant wildlife habitat
or within 120 metres of such habitat, unless a site evaluation report has been prepared and it
has been demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts to the habitat or its function.

3 STUDY APPROACH

The following activities were completed to fulfill the objectives of this study.

3.1 DATA SOURCES
Background information related to the natural heritage features and functions of the study area was
reviewed from the following:
¢ Aerial images (Google);
¢ Atlas of the Breeding Birds of Ontario [website - http://www.birdsontario.org/atlas/index.jsp]
(Bird Studies Canada, 2006)];
+ Natural Heritage Information Centre [website - https://www.ontario.ca/page/make-natural-
heritage-area-map] (MNRF, 2019);
e Species at Risk in Ontario list [website -
http://www.mnr.gov.on.ca/en/Business/Species/2ColumnSubPage/246809.html] (Ontario,
2019);

BIRKS Natural Heritage Consultants 3
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e Ontario Nature — Ontario Reptile and Amphibian Atlas [website -
https://www.ontarionature.org/protect/species/reptiles_and amphibians/index.php] (Ontario
Nature, 2018); and,

» Township of the Archipelago Official Plan (January 2019) and maps

3.2 FIELD SURVEYS

Natural heritage features and functions within the study area were characterized through completion of
field surveys. The following sections outline the methods used for each of the surveys, including specific
provincial protocols utilized. Incidental wildlife, plant and habitat observations are considered during all
surveys. Searches were also conducted to document the presence or absence of suitable habitat, based
on habitat requirements of Threatened or Endangered species with habitat ranges overlapping the
property. Birks NHC ecologists conducted a site visit on July 31, 2019 to review site conditions.

3.2.1 Vegetation Community Mapping and Surveys

Vegetation communities were assessed using Ecological Land Classification (ELC) as a first step in
identifying and assessing for potential natural heritage features within the property. Vegetation
community types were classified using the Ontario Ecological Land Classification (ELC) protocols of the
Ecosites of Ontario Manual (Banton et al. Operational Draft 2009). The ecological community
boundaries were determined through a review of aerial photography and then further refined during
the site visit. This field survey was also used to search the areas in the area proposed for development
for rare, or otherwise protected, plants information.

Vascular plants were considered during the October site visit. A formal list typical of a three season
vegetation survey was not completed due to the scope of the assignment nor has a list been compiled
for inclusion in this report. The list of species identified during the site visit can be provided upon
request. No Species at Risk or provincially rare plant species were documented within the study area.

3.2.2 Wildlife Surveys

A wildlife assessment within the property was completed through incidental observations while on site.
Any incidental observations of wildlife were noted, as well as other wildlife evidence such as dens,
tracks, and scat. For each observation notes, and when possible, photos were taken.

Wildlife habitat functions were evaluated according to provincial criteria outlined in the Ecoregion SE
Criterion Schedules (MNRF, 2015).

3.3 SPECIES AT RISK

The Species at Risk assessment included an analysis of the habitat requirements of Species at Risk
reported to occur in the area to identify those having potential to occur within the study area. Birks
NHC reviewed data obtained through desktop review and the site visit, related to potential habitat for
provincially designated species listed under O. Reg. 230/08 of the ESA as Threatened or Endangered.
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Habitat requirements and appropriate designations for all species with habitat potential present in the
area are outlined in Table 1 of this report. No focussed species specific surveys were carried out for the
purpose of this assessment. Thus, where it is determined that the species have potential habitat within
the study area, it is assumed that those species will occur in the area. The assessment considers
whether the proposed activity would be able to proceed in compliance with regulations made under the
ESA if it were allowed to proceed with the assumption that the species could be present.

4 NATURAL HERITAGE FEATURES AND FUNCTIONS

The following sections present an examination our findings as they related to natural heritage features
and functions in the study area.

4.1 VEGETATION COMMUNITIES AND PLANTS
4.1.1 Vegetation Communities

Vegetation communities and their respective locations within the study area are illustrated on Figure 1.
A total of five vegetation communities were identified. Representative photos from the study area are
included in Appendix A. The ecosites identified on the property follow:

1. GO013T! - Very Shallow, Dry: Cedar Conifer

This vegetation community is centrally located on a high point adjacent to the small Open Rock Barren
community. Itis dominated by White Cedar growing on thin soil covering the rocky high point. The
edges of the community towards the Red Maple Hardwood and the Mineral Thicket include some small
Red Oak and Red Maple in a narrow dry transition area. Because of the size and density of the White
Cedar there is limited understory or ground cover with conifer litter and moss making up a large
component of the area.

2. GO74Tt - Moist, Coarse: Red Maple Hardwood

A general low point on the property, this community is in a low area with sandy soils. It is generally
situated between the rocky rise at the east, the rising sandy soils to the west and wet thicket swamp to
the north and south. The vegetation within the community appears to be influenced by the surrounding
communities as much as the changing lake levels with a mix of wetland and upland species in the
understory with a canopy that is tolerant of variable conditions. The understory in this area was
composed of a mix of Red Maple, White Birch, Mountain Maple and Beaked Hazel. Ground cover was
primarily broadleaf litter with Bluebead-lily, Wild Sarsaparilla and Rose-twisted Stalk occurring in the
highest abundance.

3. G134S - Mineral Thicket Swamp

The G134 Mineral Thicket Swamp community is inundated with water as a result of the current lake
levels. The grasses and reeds mixed with the Speckled Alder are all tolerant of changing water levels
and commonly seen along shorelines with variable water levels. Based on the air photos, this area will
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dry out during years with lower lake levels. Under those conditions the shrub cover would remain
persistent, but the ground cover vegetation would be expected to be very different from what was
currently represented.

4. GO73Tt — Moist, Coarse: Sugar Maple Hardwood

As the topography rises, the G074Tt community transitions into the drier G073Tt community which
includes a greater component of Sugar Maple with American Beech, White Ash, White Birch and White
Pine in addition to the species represented in the G074 community. There is variation within the
understory and ground cover of this community based on soil depth and water retention. Inclusions
were noted for both shallow soil communities dominated by an understory of Canadian Yew and wet
pockets where ground cover was dominated by ferns and sedges limited to small hummocks and old
tree roots.

5. G165N — Open Rock Barren

At the easternmost point of the property between the two mapped areas of wetland is a small rock
outcrop where the property rises back up. This area is directly adjacent to the GO13Tl vegetation
community. Small areas of soil are retained within rock crevices that allow for some grasses and shrubs
to grow amidst the small rock pile there, otherwise the community is mostly void of vegetation.

4.1.2 Vascular Plants

Vascular plants were considered during the July site visit. A formal list typical of a three season
vegetation survey was not completed due to the scope of the assignment nor has a list been compiled
for inclusion in this report. The list of species identified during the site visit can be provided upon
request. No SAR or provincially rare plant species were documented within the study area.

4.2 PROVINCIALLY SIGNIFICANT WETLAND

The study area contains wetlands mapped as part of the Sandy Island PSW Complex which has also been
identified as a Coastal Wetland. Wetland units are associated with the G134S vegetation communities
mapped directly adjacent to the property along the shoreline of the island and would be considered
adjacent for the purpose of this study.

4.3 WOODLAND
The assessment of significance for the forest or ‘woodland’ associated with the property was not
completed because the property is located within Ecoregion 5E and this policy does not apply.

4.4  SIGNIFICANT WILDLIFE HABITAT

Birks NHC has reviewed the MNRF’s Significant Wildlife Habitat Technical Guide (2000) and the
accompanying Ecoregion 5E Criteria Schedules (MNRF, 2015) to assess the potential for Significant
Wildlife Habitat to be present in the study area. Based on that assessment it was determined that the
following candidate SWH functions may be associated with the property and adjacent lands:
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+ Seasonal Concentration Areas of Animals
o Shorebird Migratory Stopover Area (Unlikely under current conditions) — Under lower
lake conditions the mapped G134S vegetation community and adjacent shoreline
wetland areas which would result could provide this function.
o Bat Maternity Colonies (Assumed) — Forest Ecosites GO73Tt and GO74Tt
o Turtle Wintering Areas (Assumed) — Adjacent shoreline and wetland associated with
Georgian Bay
e Specialized Habitat for Wildlife
o Waterfowl Nesting Area (Assumed) — Forest Ecosites GO73Tt and GO74Tt
o Woodland Raptor Nesting Habitat {Assumed) — Forest Ecosites GO73Tt and GO74Tt
o Amphibian Breeding Habitat {Woodland/Wetland) (Assumed) — Woodland within areas
of potential vernal pooling west of the property and Wetland within the areas northeast
and southeast of the property in sheltered shoreline areas.
¢ Habitat for Species of Conservation Concern (Not including Endangered or Threatened Species)
o Special Concern and Rare Wildlife (Assumed) — Specifically Eastern Wood-pewee, Red-
headed Woodpecker, Wood Thrush, Midland Painted Turtle, Northern Map Turtle,
Snapping Turtle

All functions noted above are linked to the associated habitat as outlined on the property and adjacent
lands. The assessment table is included as Appendix B.

4.4.1 Seasonal Concentration Areas of Animals

As outlined within the criteria for Significant Wildlife Habitat in Ecoregion 5E Schedules, Seasonal
Concentration Areas are areas where wildlife species occur annually in numbers at certain times of the
year, sometimes highly concentrated within relatively small areas. As a result, the loss of, or damage to,
these features can result in a significant impact to populations.

Shorebird Migratory Stopover Area

As outlined in Appendix B this function is not expected to be associated with the study area given the
current conditions. If lake levels recede the marsh wetland areas that will form to the north and south
of the property would provide a potential migratory stopover area. The area where this function would
be present is already mapped as Coastal Wetland and Provincially Significant Wetland. Given that it will
not currently provide function it is not considered further in this report with the exception that it is
noted in mitigation as something to consider if fake levels recede.

Bat Maternity Colonies
Large snag trees within second growth forest communities including G073Tt and GO74Tt may provide
suitable roosting habitat for various bat species, other than Endangered bat species.

Turtle Wintering Areas
Shallow areas and sheltered bays within Georgian Bay on ‘adjacent lands’ surrounding the property are
likely to provide habitat which would be appropriate for turtle wintering. There did not appear to be
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enough deposition of organic material on the lake bottom in many areas around the island, likely since
the water has only recently risen and the shoreline wave action is very active. Without undertaking
more detailed surveys it is impossible to say with certainty if the habitat is currently being used. As
such, this function will be assumed present in areas considered adjacent for the purpose of this
assessment.

4.4.2 Specialized Habitat for Wildlife

Specialized Habitat for Wildlife is a category which is intended to reflect the need of many wildlife
species for substantial areas of suitable habitat for successful breeding. The populations of species
included under this category are expected to decline when habitat becomes fragmented and reduced in
size.

Waterfow! Nesting Area

This function is assumed to be associated with the GO73Tt and G074Tt vegetation communities due to
the presence of the G134S vegetation community along the shoreline and the Sandy Lake PSW. Broadly
speaking ELC ecosite codes which are considered to have potential to provide habitat include all upland
habitats adjacent to wetland features. Nests in forested areas would usually be associated with tree
cavities.

Woodland Raptor Nesting Habitat

Associated with forested communities, this function is assumed to be associated with the GO73Tt and
GO074Tt vegetation communities. While no stick nests were identified in the study area, large cavities
can also be used by some species.

Amphibian Breeding (Woodland/Wetland)

The coastal wetland units associated with the Sandy Island Provincially Significant Wetland and small
vernal pools within GO74Tt forest community both provide potential habitat for Amphibian Breeding.
Ampbhibian species identified during the site assessment included American Bullfrog and Green Frog.

4.4.3 Habitat for Species of Conservation Concern

Significant Wildlife Habitat is intended to protect large areas of habitat which are important for the long-
term survival and success of species which are either quite rare in the Province or have experienced
significant population decline. Habitat for Species of Conservation Concern are therefore considered
Significant Wildlife Habitat on the basis that the wildlife species are listed as Special Concern or rare, or
otherwise important species that are declining. According to the Significant Wildlife Habitat Technical
Guide Ecoregion SE Criteria Schedules (MNRF, 2015), habitat for Special Concern and Rare Species is
characterized by the presence of any species considered provincially rare (ranked $1-53) or designated
Special Concern under the ESA.
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Special Concern and Rare Wildlife Species
Several species listed as Special Concern in O. Reg. 230/08 have potential habitat on Sandy Island within
the study area including:

o Eastern Musk Turtle

e Eastern Wood-pewee

e Northern Map Turtle

e Red-headed Woodpecker
e Snapping Turtle

e Wood Thrush

Habitat for these species would be broadly categorized within the forest (GO73Tt and GO74Tt
communities) and the wetland areas associated with the study area. Some basking function could be
associated with the small rock barren area, but no turtles were observed basking in the study area on
approach to the property.

4.5 AREAS OF NATURAL AND SCIENTIFIC INTEREST
There are no Area of Natural or Scientific Interest identified within 10 km of the study area.

4.6  FISH HABITAT

Type 1 Fish habitat has been mapped along the entire east and southeast shore area of Sandy Island
encompassing all of the small islands there and shallow rocky shoals. Mapping is included in
Appendix C.

4.7 HABITAT OF THREATENED AND ENDANGERED SPECIES

The background assessment identified potential species listed as Threatened or Endangered that could
occur within the study area. The listin Table 1 below was scoped to include species for which suitable
habitat has potential to be present and excluded those for which no habitat opportunities occur within
the study area or are historical in nature (i.e., greater than 40 years). Table 1 includes a summary of
relevance to the study area.
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Common Name Scientific Designation? Habitat Present Within Study Area
Name

Mammals

Little Brown Myotis lucifugus | Endangered Yes — suitable forest communities present to

Myotis provide maternity roost habitat.

!Northern Myotis | Myotis Endangered

septentrionalis

Tri-colored Bat Perimyotis Endangered

subflavus

Reptiles

!Blanding’s Turtle | Enydoidea Threatened Potential — the species has not been reported in the

blandingii Sandy Island Area, but it is reasonable to expect
that they could be present within the Sandy Island
PSW Complex.

Eastern Foxsnake | Elaphe gloydii Threatened Yes — the species has been reported multiple times
over the past 10 years on Sandy Island. Itis
expected to be present on the Island. To the best
of our knowledge, no areas outlined in
Section 24.4 (2) of O. Reg 242/08 are present on the
property.

'Eastern Hog- Heterodon Threatened Potential — the species has only been reported once

nosed Snake platirhinos in the Sandy Island Area. It is reasonable to expect
that they could be present on the Sandy Island.

!Massasauga Sistrurus Threatened Yes — has been reported multiple times over the

catenatus past 10 years on Sandy Island. Itis expected to be

present on the Island. The Rock Barren Community
G165N has some potential to be used as gestation
habitat by Massasauga present on the island. The
potential habitat is present on the south side of the
community where a large rock is present associated
with low vegetation cover.

Source: (1) MNRF SARO List, Birks NHC expertise; (2) NHIC (2019)

Designation Status

Provincial Status — Species at Risk in Ontario list maintained by the Ministry of Natural Resources and
Forestry, O. Reg. 230/08. Endangered Species Act, 2007

BIRKS Natural Heritage Consultants
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4.8 CANDIDATE SIGNIFICANT NATURAL HERITAGE FEATURES SUMMARY

The results of field surveys, review of background information and analysis indicate the potential for the
candidate significant natural heritage features and functions to be located on or adjacent to the
property. Ourimpact assessment will consider potential impacts only to features and functions
summarized In Table 2 below.

Table 2. Candidate Significant Natural Heritage Features Summary

Natural Within Property Boundary On the property or within
Heritage 120 metres
Feature
Provincially G134S swamp thicket vegetation communities | Sandy Island PSW Complex
Significant directly connected to the mapped Sandy
Wetland Island PSW Complex
Significant Not Applicable. The Property is located in Ecoregion 5E.
Woodlands
Significant Not Applicable. The Property is located in Ecoregion 5E.
Valleylands
Significant Potential: Potential:
Wildlife Forest Communities GO73Tt and GO74Tt Wetland Communities along the
Habitat » Bat Maternity Colonies Shoreline
o Waterfowl! Nesting Area ¢ Amphibian Breeding
¢ Woodland Raptor Nesting Habitat (Wetland)

« Amphibian Breeding Habitat (Woodland) o Turtle Wintering Areas
 Habitat for Species of Conservation Concern | Habitat for Species of

— Eastern Wood-pewee Conservation Concern
— Red-headed Woodpecker ——Northern Map Turtle
—Wood Thrush —Snapping Turtle

Wettand Communities along the Shoreline
* Amphibian Breeding (Wetland)
Provincial None identified within 10 km on NHIC mapping
Areas of
Natural and
Scientific
Interest

Fish Habitat None identified on the property. The bay present to the east and
southeast of Sandy Island is

mapped as Type 1 Fish Habitat
which would be considered
adjacent.

BIRKS Natural Heritage Consultants
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Natural Within Property Boundary On the property or within
Heritage 120 metres
Feature

Habitat of Expected to be present:

Threatened or » Endangered Bat Species — potential roost habitat is present within GO73Tt and

Endangered GO74Tt communities present in the study area

Species Potential:

» Blanding’s Turtle — Although no habitat features which would be considered
general habitat were identified in the study area the species travels long
distances overland which could result in incidental encounters.

e Eastern Foxsnake — Potential general habitat. The rock barren area dpes not
appear to provide suitable overwintering opportunities. Incidental encounters
are likely.

» Eastern Hog-nosed Snake — A single report of the species indicates it is
potentially present on Sandy Island. General habitat could be considered
throughout the property and incidental encounters are entirely possible.

» Masssasauga — Likely to use edges of the rock barren area for a gestation site.
Incidental encounters are probable during use of the property.

5 IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The intent of this study is to identify potential natural heritage features and functions associated with
the property and determine if potential impacts could arise from the proposed activity. Because
functions are generally grouped into features, impacts considered with a focus on three features. These
include the Provincially Significant Wetland/Georgian Bay, Woodland (G073Tt and GO74Tt), and Rock
Barren. These features will be considered inclusive of the functions listed which are summarized in
Table 2.

5.1 DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Itis our understanding that the property owner is proposing the construction of a small seasonal cabin.
The cabin is proposed in the area associated with the G013Tl and the G165N vegetation communities,
with the majority of the structure tucked into the GO13Tl, young cedar community. The proposed cabin
would be roughly 5 m x 6 m with two small attached decks 24 m? and 12 m?. for a total area of 53.5 m2.
The building is proposed approximately 7.5 m away from the high water mark. It is our understanding
that the cabin would be serviced via lake water and a small grey water area proposed to the west of the
cabin at the edge of the G013Tl vegetation community. For the purpose of this assessment, impacts are
considered on the assumption that the ‘proposed development’ includes the construction of the small
seasonal cabin and installation of services described above. It is our understanding that the cabin would
be used intermittently throughout the cottage season as a small, off the grid retreat.

BIRKS Natural Heritage Consultants
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5.2  ASSESSMENT

5.2.1 Provincially Significant Wetland/Georgian Bay

There is no development currently proposed within the vegetation communities associated with the
Sandy Island PSW in the study area. Currently, the only structure associated with these units is a
floating dock structure which was already present at the time of the assessment. The mapped PSW
vegetation ecosites were inundated due to high water levels. In addition to being mapped as PSW and
Coastal Wetland, the area is expected to provide Significant Wildlife Habitat for overwintering turtles
and fish habitat. While there is no development proposed within these areas, care will be required to
ensure that deleterious substances like fuel and sediment are not permitted to enter the areas to avoid
causing damage to functions that may be present within the surrounding waters or loss of function.

The Township Official Plan notes that generally a 15 m setback is require for structures to protect fish
habitat. The proposed structure is currently understood to be within 15 m of the shoreline but above
the high water line. As outlined in the recommendations, it is advised that no storage of liquid fue!
should be permitted in the area of the proposed structure.

5.2.2 Woodland

While the woodland does not qualify as Significant because it is in Ecoregion 5E, there are Significant
Wildlife Habitat functions which could be associated with woodland in the study area as outlined in
Table 2. The wildlife functions which would be associated with GO73Tt and GO74Tt vegetation
communities are focused on the potential for large trees, often those with large holes, cracks or crevices
to provide habitat function for birds and bats or the potential for amphibian breeding within wet
pockets during the spring. There is currently no proposed tree removal within the vegetation
communities directly associated with the GO73Tt and GO74Tt vegetation communities. As a result, there
is no expectation that direct impacts would result to the functions which could be associated with those
vegetation communities. Minimal tree removal will be required to permit the proposed development
within the G017TI vegetation community, and no candidate wildlife trees or potential amphibian
breeding habitat was associated with that area.

Wildlife trees, commonly referred to as snag trees because of the imperfections that enable them to
support wildlife are also important for Endangered bat species. Unless appropriate studies are
undertaken to rule out potential use of the GO73Tt and GO74Tt vegetation communities it is
recommended that tree removal be limited in scope. Endangered bat species commonly congregate in
large maternity colonies during the summer months using groups of snag trees. The loss of a maternity
roost colony would be detrimental to the species and a contravention of the ESA. Mitigation is included
to avoid accidental contraventions of the ESA.

As previously noted, the proposed development is intended to be small in nature and focused on
minimalist, off grid ideologies. Given that it is intended to be used intermittently throughout the year,
there is no expectation that there would be an increase in light or noise associated such that it would be
expected to negatively impact the woodland or the wildlife habitat functions associated with that area.

BIRKS Natural Heritage Consultants 13
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Intrinsically, there is no expectation that the proposed development would negatively impact the
wildlife habitat functions with potential to be present within this area. Mitigation has been
recommended to ensure that this remains true.

5.2.3 Rock Barren

The Rock Barren (G165N) vegetation community needs to be considered for potential habitat function,
the ecosite associated with the property is only around 0.04ha. Further, the feature has limited
structure with no access to large cracks or fissures through the majority of the ecosite. For the purpose
of this assessment, the ecosite is not considered potential significant wildlife habitat. This community
still maintains some potential to provide habitat for Endangered or Threatened species reptiles,
specifically Massasauga and Blanding’s Turtle. A small area of potential Gestation habitat for
Massasauga was identified on the southern end of the Rock Barren where large rocks paired with low
vegetation cover provide access to what would be appropriate gestation habitat. This area remains
outside of the footprint of the proposed development, but if it were used during the summer would
mean that snakes and humans could be present in proximity to each other. Assuming the owners are
aware of the potential and agreeable to maintaining that habitat in proximity to the cabin contravention
of the ESA is unlikely. Likewise, Blanding’s Turtle, could potentially use the edges of the Rock Barren for
basking habitat. This seems unlikely given the abundance of habitat with more shelter to the north and
south at the edges of the wetland.

Mitigation is recommended to ensure that any function currently provided by the feature remains.

5.3  DIRECT IMPACTS SUMMARY
These impacts have potential to occur when construction of the proposed development takes place.
Based on our understanding of the development plan, potential direct impacts would be limited to the
small area of the property where the development is proposed. The following points were important in
the consideration of potential direct impacts and is intended as a summary:

e Direct Impact could occur through the removal of Natural Heritage Features.

o Given the location of the proposed development this impact would be specific to
potential functions associated with the G013T| and the G165N vegetation communities.

o Thisincludes potential to negatively impact significant wildlife habitat functions that
would be dependent on those communities outlined in Table 2.

o The potential for direct impact is minimal. The area required for removal is very small,
accounting for less than 5% of the total tree cover on the property with no large wildlife
trees or vernal pools identified in that area.

o Proposed mitigation is expected to be sufficient to ensure that there will be no negative
impact to the natural heritage functions associated with the feature.

¢ Direct impact could occur through the intentional or accidental contraventions of Ontario’s ESA.

o Directimpact associated with Species at Risk in Ontario would be associated with killing

or harming individuals of protected species or destruction of their habitat during

BIRKS Natural Heritage Consultants
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5.4

construction of the proposed development. All of those impacts would also be
considered contraventions of the ESA.

If implemented correctly, proposed mitigation is expected to be sufficient to avoid
accidental contraventions of the ESA.

INDIRECT IMPACTS SUMMARY

Indirect impacts have potential to result following the completion of the proposed activity. Usually as a

result of the project or human use of the project site following completion of the project, they also have
a wider potential area of impact. The following points were important in the consideration of potential

indirect impacts:

Indirect Impacts could result from the introduction of foreign equipment, new activities or noise
in proximity to the Natural Heritage Features.

O

Equipment like generators, night lighting, or constant use can reduce the potential
function of some Natural Heritage Features. Some wildlife are intolerant of unnatural
lighting conditions or continuous noise. Further, if construction equipment coming from
other sites is used without first being cleaned properly, invasive species transport can
result to sensitive areas.

The proposed use, intermittent seasonal residential, does not reflect those that would
typically be associated with increases in noise or activity, nor are the wildlife functions
identified to be potentially present in the are overly sensitive to the change in noise and
light that would be expected.

Mitigation is included to ensure that this is considered appropriately and also ensure
that no accidental movement of invasive plants or animals results.

Indirect impacts could result through the accidental discharge of contaminants such as fuel or oil
when cleaning, fueling or servicing equipment.

o]

Spill of such fuel, oil or cleaning products would be expected to cause damage to the
wetland communities and the fish and animals that rely on them.

Mitigation is proposed to ensure that accidental spills would not be directly discharged
to the nearby natural areas.

Indirect impact could occur through the intentional or accidental contraventions of Ontario’s

ESA.
o Indirect impact associated with Species at Risk in Ontario would be associated with
killing or harming individuals of protected species during the use of the property. This
would also be considered a contravention of the ESA.
o If implemented correctly, proposed mitigation is expected to be sufficient to avoid
accidental contraventions of the ESA.
BIRKS N\atural Heritage Consultants 15
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6 RECOMMENDATIONS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

Mitigation refers to the avoidance or reduction of impacts associated with the proposed activity through
best management practices or other activities. As previously discussed, potential impacts were
identified which could result to the Natural Heritage Features and Functions associated with the study
area. Where applied correctly, mitigation is intended to reduce the potential for impacts to ensure that
the Natural Heritage Features and Functions will continue uninhibited by the proposed development.
Thus, mitigation would be required to ensure that there is no negative impact and the development can
proceed in conformity with the relevant planning documents and in compliance with environmental law.
The following mitigation measures should be incorporated into the plan.

6.1  SITE RESTORATION

Areas disturbed during construction should be restored immediately following the development. Site
restoration should include revegetation efforts of excavated and/or erodible soils especially within the
GO013Tl vegetation community. Where appropriate, erosion and sediment controls should be
incorporated to minimize impacts beyond the work area. All disturbed areas should be revegetated
with native and non-invasive trees and shrubs, combined with a grass mix suitable for residential
applications.

6.2  OPERATIONS

No development activities (material and equipment storage, grading, equipment activity, etc.) should be
permitted in the wetland areas. This should include the G073Tt vegetation community which is lower
grade and could become inundated if lake levels rise or due to storm surges.

Any equipment used on the property should be cieaned prior to being transported to the property to
avoid accidental transport of seeds or other sources of invasive plants/animals. It is worth noting that
Phragmites appeared to be already present in low density stands within the Sandy Island PSW mapped
to the northeast of the property. Control of those stands, could be considered in cooperation with the
Georgian Bay Land Trust who own large portions of Sandy Island.

6.3 MIGRATORY BIRDS

Construction activities involving the removal of vegetation should be restricted from occurring during
the bird breeding season. Migratory birds, nests, and eggs are protected by the Migratory Birds
Convention Act, 1994 and the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Act, 1997. Environment Canada outlines
dates when activities in any region have potential to impact nests at the Environment Canada Website
(http://www.ec.gc.ca/paom-itmb/default.asp?lang=En&n=4F39A78F-1#_03)

For this location, vegetation removal should be avoided between April 1st and August 30th of any given
year. If vegetation clearing is required between these dates, screening by an ecologist with knowledge
of bird species present in the area could be undertaken to ensure that the vegetation has been
confirmed to be free of nests prior to clearing.

BIRKS Natural Heritage Consultants
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6.4  SPECIES AT RISK

6.4.1 General

Given the dynamic character of the natural environment and regular changes to policy (i.e., new species
listing), consideration is recommended in the interpretation of potential presence of Threatened or
Endangered species as protected under the ESA.

This report was produced based on the most up-to-date policy information, however, is not intended to
act as a long-term assessment of potential SAR. The ESA is recognized as being a ‘proponent-driven’
piece of legislation and therefore it is the responsibility of the landowner/developer to ensure
compliance with the regulations made under this act. Should any of the species listed as Threatened or
Endangered be encountered on the property it is recommended that a Natural Heritage Ecologist or the
appropriate ministry , now the Ministry of Environment Conservation and Parks (MECP), should be
consulted to determine the appropriate actions to avoid accidental contraventions of the ESA. Also, if a
considerable length of time and/or sudden change in policy occur prior to construction, it is
recommended that a review of the assessment provided within this report be undertaken by a qualified
Ecologist to ensure compliance with the ESA at that time.

All current Threatened or Endangered species listed under O. Reg. 230/08 made under the ESA with a
currency date of August 1, 2018 have been considered within this report.

6.4.2 Landowner Information

Worker training would typically be recommended for individuals carrying out work to complete the
construction of a project in habitat of Species at Risk or where there is potential to for those species to
occur in the study area. Given that it is our understanding that the work is being undertaken by the
landowner it is recommended that a landowner information package be created to provide information
about Species at Risk to individuals using the property. Individuals using the property should ensure
that Species at Risk are not harmed or killed.

The property owner should seek to ensure that all individuals using the property, or purchasing the
property in the future are educated to ensure that, if identified, the individuals are not wantonly injured
or killed, and to ensure that damage to features which could constitute habitat is avoided. Information
conveyed through this education should include:

e Species habitat and identification

» Requirements under the ESA including avoidance of harm to the species and damage to relevant

habitat
e Appropriate action to take if the species is encountered
¢ How to record sightings and encounters

6.4.3 Timing Windows

Site alteration should occur outside of the active breeding/roosting/nesting season (April 1 —
October 31) for all Species at Risk species that may utilize the property. If the work schedule requires
that site alteration be completed during the active season, screening by an ecologist with knowledge of
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species present in the area should be undertaken to ensure that the risk of impacting Specie at Risk has
been evaluated and assumed to be low to non-existent. These dates are more restrictive than the
window for the MBCA.

6.5 Docks

In order to avoid damage to fish, fish habitat or the Sandy Island PSW associated with the shoreline it is
recommended that any future works involving this area should carefully consider the current legislation
at that time. Presently there is a floating dock present on the north shore of the point adjacent to a
portion of the Sandy Island PSW. Appropriate permits may be required from the MNRF and the
Department of Fisheries and Oceans Canada if modifications are required to the docking facilities due to
lake level fluctuations. It remains the responsibility of the landowner to ensure that any new dock
structures that could be required due to lake Ievel fluctuations are comply with all relevant legislation.

7 CONCLUSIONS

This EIS was prepared for the property identified as Part of Sandy Island being Lot 1 on Plan M346,
Cowper in the Township of the Archipelago. Itis our understanding that an EIS has been requested by
the Township of the Archipelago to ensure conformity and consistency with the Official Plan and the
Provincial Policy Statement. The objective of the EIS is to identify the potential functions associated
with natural heritage features present on the property and determine if potential impacts to those
functions could arise from the proposed activity. The assessment is focused on potential ecological
impacts which could result from a proposed seasonal residential development on the property.

The results of this EIS demonstrate that where potential to Significant Natural Heritage Features and the
associated ecological functions are identified, there is limited potential for negative impacts. Where
potential was identified, mitigation measures recommended in this report have been developed to
mitigate potential negative ecological impacts. Provided the mitigation measures recommended in this
report are followed, the proposed development will not impact any identified features negatively. Thus,
the proposed development would conform with the Official Plan and the Provincial Policy Statement
and comply with the Endangered Species Act and the federal Fisheries Act.

BIRKS Natural Heritage Consultants
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Photograph 1. Mapped Sandy Island Provincially Significant Wetland
(Open Water) and Low Thicket Speckled Alder (G134S). (July 2019)

Photograph 2. Small Rock Barren Community (G165N) where cabin
is proposed (July 2019) 1
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Photograph 2. Young Cedar Community (G013TI) where removals
allow for grey water treatment area. (July 2019)

Photograph 4. Mature G074Tt vegetation community. (July 2019)
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Photograph 5. Mature G073Tt vegetation community as topography
rises to the west. (July 2019)

Photograph 6. Transition area between G134S Mineral Thicket
Swamp and mature G074Tt Red Maple Hardwood. (July 2019) 3
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Photograph 7. Current Floating Dock Placement (August 2019)
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Photograph 8. Greywater Area staked out for assessment.
(July 2019)
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Tables 2.1-4.6. Significant Wildlife Habitat Criteria Schedule for Ecoregion 5E
2.1 - Seasonal Concentration Areas of Animals
Wildlife Habitat Wildlife Species Candidate Significant Wildlife Habitat {SWH) Confirmed SWH Assessment

ELC Ecosite Codes

Habitat Criteria and Information Sources

Defining Criteria

Waterfowl Stopover and Staging
Areas (Terrestrial)

Rationale: Habitat important to
migrating waterfowl,

American Black Duck
Wood Duck
Green-winged Teal
Blue-winged Teal Mallard
Northern Pintail
Northern Shoveler
American Wigeon
Gadwall

These field/meadow ELC
ecosites with appropriate soils
and vegetation:

G060-062
G077-079
G093-095
G109-111

Plus evidence of annual spring
flooding from melt water or
run-off.

Fields with sheet water during Spring (mid March to May),
Fields flooding during spring melt and run-off provide
important invertebrate foraging habitat for migrating
waterfowi.

Agricultural fields with waste grains are commonly used
by waterfowl, these are not considered SWH uniess they
have spring sheet water available.
Information Sources
e Anecdotal information from the landowner,
adjacent landowners or local naturalist clubs may be
good information in determining occurrence.
e Sites documented through waterfowl planning
processes (EHJV implementation plan)
» Field Naturalist Clubs
e Ducks Unlimited Canada
e Natural Heritage Information Centre (NHIC)
Waterfowl Concentration Area

Studies carried out and verified presence of an annual

concentration of any listed species, evaluation methods to

follow “Bird and Bird Habitats: Guidelines for Wind Power

Projects”

* Any mixed species aggregations of 100 or more
individuals required.

* The flooded field ecosite habitat plus a 100-300m
radius area, dependant on local site conditions and
adjacent land use is the significant wildlife habitat,

®  Annual use of habitat is documented from information
sources or field studies (annual use can be based on
studies or determined by past surveys with species
numbers and dates).

e SWHMIST Index #7 provides development effects and
mitigation measures.

| Habitat in study area does not meet criteria

related to wildlife species. No further
was ¢ d for this fi

Waterfowl| Stopover and Staging
Areas (Aquatic)

Rationale; Important for local
and migrant waterfowl|
populations during the spring or
fall migration or both periods
combined. Sites identified are
usually only one of a few in the
eco-district

Canada Goose
Cackling Goose
Snow Goose
American Black Duck Northern
Pintail

Northern Shoveler
American Wigeon
Gadwall
Green-winged Teal
Blue-winged Teal
Hooded Merganser
Common Merganser
Lesser Scaup

Greater Scaup
Long-tailed Duck
Surf Scoter
White-winged Scoter
Black Scoter
Ring-necked duck
Common Goldeneye
Bufflehead

Redhead

Ruddy Duck
Red-breasted Merganser
Brant

Canvasback

Ruddy Duck

ELC Ecosites:

G142-G152

Ponds, marshes, lakes, bays, coastal inlets, and
watercourses used during migration. Sewage treatment
ponds and storm water ponds do not qualify as a SWH,
however a reservoir managed as a large wetland or
pond/lake does qualify.

These habitats have an abundant food supply (mostly
aquatic invertebrates and vegetation in shallow water);
Information Sources
e Environment Canada.
e  Field Naturalist clubs often are aware of
staging/stopover areas.
*  OMNRF Wetland Evaluations indicate presence of
locally and regionally significant waterfowl staging.
e Sites documented through waterfowl| planning
processes (EHJV implementation plan)
e Ducks Unlimited projects
* Element occurrence specification by Nature Serve:
http://www.natureserve.org
»  Natural Heritage Information Centre (NHIC)
Waterfowl Concentration Area

Studies carried out and verified presence of:

e Aggregations of 100 or more of listed species for
7 days, results in >700 waterfow| use days.

e  Areas with annual staging of ruddy ducks, canvasbacks,
and redheads are SWH

e The combined area of the ELC ecosites and a 100m
radius area is the SWH

e Wetland area and shorelines associated with sites
identified within the SWHTG Appendix K are significant
wildlife habitat.

e  Evaluation methods to follow “Bird and Bird Habitats:
Guidelines for Wind Power Projects”

e Annual Use of Habitat is Documented from Information
Sources or Field Studies (Annual can be based on
completed studies or determined from past surveys
with species numbers and dates recorded).

e SWHMIST Index #7 provides development effects and
mitigation measures.

| Habitat in study area does not meet Gteria

related to wildiife species. No further

assessment was compieted for this function,
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Area

Shorebird Migratory Stopover

Rationale: High quality shorebird
stopover habitat is extremely
rare and typically has a long
history of use

Greater Yellowlegs
Lesser Yellowlegs
Marbled Godwit
Hudsonian Godwit
Black-bellied Plover American
Golden-Plover
Semipalmated Plover Solitary
Sandpiper

Spotted Sandpiper
Semipalmated Sandpiper
Pectoral Sandpiper
White-rumped Sandpiper
Baird’s Sandpiper

Least Sandpiper

Purple Sandpiper

Stilt Sandpiper
Short-billed Dowitcher
Red-necked Phalarope
Whimbre|

Ruddy Turnstone
Sanderling

Dunlin

| Habitat in study area does not meet riteria
| retated to wildiife spedes. No further
assessment was completed for this function.

Watland f

currertly mapp

| could represent potential habitat under low
| water conditions, but this function would be

Candidate Significant Wildlife Habitat (SWH) Confirmed SWH |
ELC Ecosite Codes Habitat Criteria and Information Sources Defining Criteria
ELC Ecosites: Shorelines of lakes, rivers and wetlands, including beach Studies confirming:
areas, bars and seasonally flooded, muddy and un- ®  Presence of 3 or more of listed species and >1000

G005-GO06 vegetated shoreline habitats. shorebird use days during spring or fall migration
G160-G162 period. {shorebird use days are the accumulated
G170-G172 Great Lakes coastal shorelines, including groynes and number of shorebirds counted per day over the course |
G176-G178 other forms of armour rock lakeshores, are extremely of the fall or spring migration period)
G186-G188 important for migratory shorebirds in May to mid-June *  Whimbrel stop briefly (<24 hours) during spring
G204-G214 and early July to October.

Sewage treatment ponds and storm water ponds do not
qualify as a SWH

Iinformation Sources

e Western hemisphere shorebird reserve network,

e Canadian Wildlife Service (CWS) Ontario Shorebird
Survey.

e Bird Studies Canada

e  Ontario Nature

e local birders and field naturalist clubs

e Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC)
Shorebird Migratory Concentration Area

migration, any site with >100 Whimbre| used for 3
years or more is significant.

The area of significant shorebird habitat includes the
mapped ELC shoreline ecosites plus a 100m radius area
Evaluation methods to follow “Bird and Bird Habitats:
Guidelines for Wind Power Projects”

SWHMIST index #8 provides development effects and
mitigation measures,

protected within the wetland overlay as
coastal wetland.

If works are propesed in this ecosite in the
| futyre, consideration should be given to this
| potental function.

d as G1345

Raptor Wintering Area

Rationale: Sites used by muitiple
species, a high number of
individuals and used annually are
most significant

Rough-legged Hawk
Long-eared Owl

Boreal Owl

Northern Saw-whet Owl

Special Concern:

Short-eared Owl

Combination of meadow/field
and forest/woodland ecosites.
Need to have a forest ELC
Ecosite :

G011-G019
G023-G028
G033-G043
G048-GOS9
G064-G076
G081-G092
G097- G108
G113-G125
or Central Ontario FEC Ecosites
ES11 - ES35

And
A meadow/field ELC Ecosite:

G020-022
G029-032
G044-047
G060-063
G077-080
G093-096
G109-112

The habitat provides a combination of fields and
woodlands that provide roosting, foraging and resting
habitats for wintering raptors.

Raptor wintering sites need to be >20 ha with a
combination of forest and upland.

Least disturbed sites, idle/faliow or lightly grazed
field/meadow (>15ha) with adjacent woodlands

Field area of the habitat is to be wind swept with limited
snow depth or accumulation

Information Sources:

« OMNREF Ecologist or Biologist

e  Field Naturalist clubs

e Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC) Raptor
Winter Concentration Area

= Data from Bird Studies Canada, most notably for
Short-eared Owls.

= Results of Christmas Bird Counts

Studies confirm the use of these habitats by:

One or more Short-eared Qwls or; at least 10
individuals and two of the listed species

To be significant a site must be used regularly (3 in

5 years) for a minimum of 20 days by the above
number of birds.

Evaluation methods to follow “Bird and Bird Habitats:
Guidelines for Wind Power Projects”

SWHMIST Index #10 provides development effects and
mitigation measures.

Habitat in study area does not maeet ariteria
related vo wildfife species. No further
assessment was compieted for this function.
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Rationale: Bat hibernacula are
rare habitats in all Ontario
landscapes.

of cliffs and rock talus in these
ELC Ecosites;

G158-G159
Gle4
G180-G181

Calcareous bedrock is fairly rare
in ecoregion 5E.

Or Central Ont. FEC:
ES4
ESS

{Note: buildings are not
considered to be SWH)

Active mine sites are not SWH.

The locations of bat hibernacula are relatively poorly
known.

Information Sources

s OMNRF for possible locations and contact for local
experts

»  Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC) Bat
Hibernaculum

e Ministry of Northern Development and Mines for

location of mine shafts.

Clubs that explore caves (Sierra Club)

University Biology Departments with bat experts

Clubs that explore caves (Sierra Club}

University Biology Departments with bat experts.

entrance of the hibernaculum for most development
types and 1000m for wind farms

Studies are to be conducted during the peak swarming
period (Aug. — Sept.). Surveys should be conducted ‘
following methods outlined in the “Bats and Bat
Habitats: Guidelines for Wind Power Projects” |
SWHMIST Index #1 provides development effects and
mitigation measures.

Wildlife Habitat Wildlife Species Candidate Significant Wildlife Habitat (SWH) Confirmed SWH Assessment
ELC Ecosite Codes Habitat Criteria and Information Sources Defining Criteria :
Bat Hibernacula Big Brown Bat Bat Hibernacula may be found | Hibernacula may be found in caves, mine shafts, All sites with confirmed hibernating bats are SWH 'Habitat in study area does not meet criteria
Tri-coloured Bat in association with components | underground foundations and Karsts. The habitat area includes a 200m radius around the refated to wildlife species. Noﬁ.ﬂha- .

assessment was completed for this function.

Bat Matemity Colonies

Big Brown Bat
Silver-haired Bat

Maternity colonies considered
SWH are found in forested

Maternity colonies can be found in tree cavities,
vegetation and often in buildings (buildings are not

confirmed use by;
>10 Big Brown Bats

Forest Ecosites GO73Tt and GO74Ty are
mmﬂwm No activity is:

Rationale: Known locations of Ecosites. considered to be SWH), >5 Adult Female Silver-haired Bats ity p d in thes ites. As
forested bat matemity colonies su:h. there I! mmhnlhatﬂn
is extremely rare in alt Ontario ELC Ecosites: Maternity roosts are not found in caves and mines in The area of the habitat includes the entire woodland or { proposed development would result in
landscapes. G016-G019 Ontario, a forest stand ELC Ecosite or an Ecoelement containing | Impacts ta Bat Matemity Colony Habitat if
G028 the maternity colonies they were identified on the property.
G040-G043 Maternity colonies located in Mature (dominant trees Evaluation methads for maternity colonies should be
GD55-G059 >B0yrs old) deciduous or mixed forest stands with >10/ha conducted following methods outlined in the “Bats and | i Works are proposed in these ecosites in
G070-GO76 large diameter (>25cm dbh) wildlife trees. Bat Habitats: Guidelines for Wind Power Projects the future, consideration should be given to
G088-G092 SWHMIST Index #12 provides development effects and | this potential function.
G103- G108 Female Bats prefer wildlife trees {snags}) in early stages of mitigation measures.
G118-G125 decay, class 1-3 or class 1 or 2.
or:
Central Ontario Forest Ecosites: | Silver-haired Bats prefer older mixed or deciduous forest
ES14, ES17, and form maternity colonies in tree cavities and smali
ES18, £S23, hollows. Older forest areas with at least 21 snags/ha are i
ES24, ES25, preferred
ES26, ES27,
ES28, ES29, Information Sources |
ES30 »  OMNREF for possible locations and contact for local It
experts |
e University Biology Departments with bat experts. |
Appendix B Page 3 of 20
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Turtle Wintering Areas

Rationale: Generally sites are the

Midland Painted Turtle

Special Concern:

For Snapping and Midland
Painted turtles; ELC Ecosites:

For most turtles, wintering areas are in the same general
area as their core habitat. Water has to be deep enough
not to freeze and have soft mud substrates.

Presence of 5 over-wintering Midland Painted Turtles is
significant
One or more Northern Map Turtle or Snapping Turtle

Wetland ecpsites GBdispresenththeswdy]
area. Narthern Map Turtle, Midland Painted
Turtle, and Snapping Turtle are all likelytobe |

only known sites in the area, Northern Map Turtle G128-G135 overwintering within a wetland is significant d with the st of Sandy Island. |
Snapping Turtle G140-G152 Qver-wintering sites are permanent water bodies, large * The mapped ELC ecosite area with the over wintering ;
Sites with the highest number of wetlands, and bogs or fens with adequate Dissolved turtles is the SWH., If the hibernation site is within a For the purpese of this assessment this |
individuals are most significant, For Northern Map Turtle - Open | Oxygen stream or river, the deep-water pool where the turtles | function is assumed 1o be present on |
Water areas such as deeper are over wintering is the SWH, dj lands fated with Georgian Bay. |
rivers or streams and lakes with | Man-made ponds such as sewage lagoons or storm water | &  QOyer wintering areas may be identified by searching for | No further surveys were carried out to [
current can also be used as ponds should not be considered SWH. congregations {Basking Areas) of turtles on warm, attempt to confirm the SWH function. ‘
over-wintering habitat. sunny days during the fall {Sept. — Oct.) or spring !
Information Sources (Mar. ~ April). Congregation of turtles is more common
e Local naturalists and experts, as well as university where wintering areas are limited and therefore
herpetologists may also know where to find some of significant |
these sites. = SWHMIST Index #28 provides development effects and I
¢ OMNRF Ecologist or Biologist mitigation measures for turtle wintering habitat. |
e  Field Naturalist clubs |
e Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC) |
Reptile Hibernaculum Snakes: For all snakes, habitat may be For snakes, hibernation takes place in sites located below | Studies confirming: | No features were identified on the property

Rationale: Generally sites are the
only known sites in the area.

Sites with the highest number of
individuals are most significant.

Eastern Gartersnake
Northern Watersnake
Northern Red-bellied Snake
Northern Brownsnake
Smooth Green Snake
Northern. Ring-necked Snake
Eastern Milksnake

Special Concern:
Eastern Ribbonsnake

Lizard:

Special Concern:
Five-lined Skink

found in any forested ecosite in
central Ontario other than very
wet ones.

Talus, Rock Barren, Crevice and
Cave, and Alvar sites may be
directly related to these
habitats.

The existence of rock piles or
slopes, stone fences, and
crumbling foundations assist in
identifying candidate SWH.

For Five-lined Skink; Central
Ontario Forest Ecosites:
ES14.2, ES17 - ES20,
ES23 ~ES30

Or;

ELC Ecosites:
G056-G059,
G070-G076,
G087-G092,
G103-G108,
G118-G125

frost lines in burrows, rock crevices and other natural or
naturalized locations. The existence of features that go
below frost line; such as rock piles or slopes, old stone
fences, and abandoned crumbling foundations assist in
identifying candidate SWH

Areas of broken and fissured rock are particularly vaiuable
since they provide access to subterranean sites below the
frost line

Wetlands can also be important over-wintering habitat in
conifer ar shrub swamps and swales, poor fens, or
depressions in bedrack terrain with sparse trees or shrubs
with sphagnum moss or sedge hummaock ground cover.

Five-lined skink prefer mixed forests with rock outcrop
openings providing cover rock overlaying granite bedrock
with fissures.

Information Sources

e Inspring, local residents or landowners may have
observed the emergence of snakes on their property
(old dug wells).

e Reports and other information available from
Conservation Authorities.

e Field Naturalists clubs

e University herpetologists

e Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC)

| «  OMNRF ecologist or biologist may be aware of
| locations of wintering skinks

Presence of snake hibernacula used by a minimum of
five individuals of a snake sp. or; individuals of two or
more snake spp.

Congregations of a minimum of five individuals of a
snake sp. or; individuals of two or more snake spp. near
potential hibernacula (foundation or rocky slope) on
sunny warm days in Spring (Apr/May) and Fall
(Sept/Oct)

Note: If there are Special Concern Species present,
then site is SWH

Note: Sites for hibernation possess specific habitat
parameters (temperature, humidity, etc.) and
consequently are used annually, often by many of the
same individuals of a local population (i.e. strong
hibernation site fidelity). Other critical life processes
{mating} often take place in close proximity to
hibernacula. The feature in which the hibernacula is
located plus a 30 m radius area is the SWH

SWHMIST Index #13 provides development effects and
mitigation measures for snake hibernacula.

Presence of any active hibernaculum for skink is
significant

SWHMIST Index #37 provides development effects and
mitigation measures for five-lined skink wintering
habitat

| which were confirmed to provide Reptife

Hibemaculum. This function could potentialty |
occur within the Rock Barren (G165N) areas.
This area had a smalt number of fissures, but
no cbvious structure with access to the
subsurface under the current lake fevels. No
features with potential to provide habitat
were noted on the property outside of the
Rock Barren habitat.

Appendix B

i

Page 4 of 20



Sandy Island Seasonal Residential.
Environmental impact Study

BIRKS NHC 02-010-2019
December 2019

Colonially - Nesting Bird

Rationale; Historical use and
number of nests in a colony
make this habitat significant. An
identified colony can be very
important to local populations.

Breeding Habitat (Bank and Cliff)

Cliff Swallow

Northern Rough-winged
Swallow (this species is not
colonial but can be found in
Cliff Swallow colonies)

Eroding banks, sandy hills,
borrow pits, steep slopes, sand
piles, cliff faces, bridge
abutments, silos, barns,

Habitat found in the following
ELC Ecosites:

Any site or areas with exposed soil banks, sandy hills,
borrow pits, steep slopes, and sand piles that are
undisturbed or naturally eroding that is not a
licensed/permitted aggregate area.

Does not include man-made structures (bridges or
buildings) or recently (2 years) disturbed soil areas, such
as berms, embankments, soil or aggregate stockpiles.

T Habitat in study area does not meet criteria
| related to wildlife species. No further
| assessment was compieted for this function.

Studies confirming:

e Presence of 1 or more nesting sites with 8 or more cliff
swallow pairs and/or rough-winged swallow pairs
during the breeding season

e Acolony identified as SWH will include a 50m radius |
habitat area from the peripheral nests |

e Field surveys to observe and count swallow nests are to :
be completed during the breeding season, Evaluation |

only known colony in area and
are used annually.

Central Ontario Forest Ecosites:
ES11.2, ES12.2, ES13.2, ES14.2,
ES15.2, ES16.2, ES17.2, ES18.2,
E519.2 ES20.2, ES21.2, £S23.2,
£524.2, ES25.2, ES26.2, ES27.2,
ES28.2, ES29.2, ES30.2, ES31,
ES32, ES33, ES34, ES35

Information Sources

e Breeding Bird Atlas, colonial nest records,

»  Ontario Heronry inventory 1991 available from Bird
Studies Canada or NHIC {OMNRF),

e Aerial photographs can help identify large heronries.

e MNRF District Offices.

e Field Naturalist clubs,

¢ The habitat extends from edge of the colony and a
minimum 300m radius or extent of the Forest Ecosite
containing the colony or any island

*  Confirmation of active heronries must be achieved
through site visits conducted during the nesting season
(April to August) or by evidence such as the presence of |
fresh guano, dead young and/or eggshells

o SWHMIST Index #5 provides development effects and |
mitigation measures,

function.

Colonially - Nesting Bird
Breeding Habitat (Ground)

Rationale; Colonies are
important to local bird
population, typically sites are
only known colony in area and
are used annually

Herring Gull

Great Black-backed Gull
Little Gull

Ring-bitled Gult
Common Tern

Caspian Tern

Brewer’s Blackbird

Any rocky island or peninsula
(natural or artificial) within a
lake or large river (two-lined on
a 1;50,000 NTS map).

Close proximity to watercourses
in open fields or pastures with
scattered trees or shrubs
(Brewer’s Blackbird)

G001-G004, GO07-GO08
G020-G021, G029-GO31
G044-G046, GO60-GO62
G077-G073, GO93-G095
G109-G111, G142-G145

Nesting colonies of gulls and terns are on islands or
peninsulas (natural or artificial) associated with open
water, marshy areas, lake or large river (two-lined on a
1,50,000 NTS map).

Brewers Blackbird colonies are found loosely on the
ground in or in low bushes in proximity to streams and
irrigation ditches within farmlands.

Information Sources

e  Ontario Breeding Bird Atlas, rare/colonial species
records.

e Canadian Wildlife Service

® Reports and other information available from CAs,

e Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC) Colonial
Waterbird Nesting Area

e MNRF District Offices,

®  Field Naturalist clubs

Studies confirming:

e Presence of >25 active nests for Herring Gulls or Ring- r were identifled on the property. These
billed Gulls, >5 active nests for Common Tern or colonies tend ta be very visible on the
>2 active nests for Caspian Tern fandscape If surveys are undertaken during

e Presence of 5 or more pairs for Brewer’s Blackbird, | the breeding season and woutd have been

e Any active nesting colony of one or more Little Gull, identified through the course of the field
and Great Black-backed Gull is significant. | surveys for the Ei5.

e The edge of the colony and a minimum 150m radius
area of habitat, or the extent of the ELC ecosites
containing the colony or any island <0.3ha with a
colony is the SWH |

¢ Studies would be done during May/June when actively |
nesting. Evaluation methods to follow “Bird and Bird II

|

| function.

Habitats: Guidelines for Wind Power Projects”
e SWHMIST Index #6 provides development effects and
mitigation measures, |

No further assessment was completed for this

‘None of the noted vegetation communities =

| No further assessment was completed for this
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All swallow population are G001-G004 methods to follow “Bird and Bird Habitats: Guidelines |
declining in Ontario. G007-G008 Does not include a licensed/permitted Mineral Aggregate for Wind Power Projects”

G020-G021 Operation, e SWHMIST Index #4 provides development effects and I

G029-G031 mitigation measures

G044-G046 Information Sources

G060-G062 e Ontario Breeding Bird Atlas.

G077-G079 »  Bird Studies Canada; NatureCounts

G093-G095 http://www birdscanada.org/bird mon/ |

G109-G111 s Field Naturalist Clubs

G173-G175 ‘

G201-G203

G210-G212 i
Colonially - Nesting Bird ELC Ecosites: Nests in live or dead standing trees in wetlands, lakes, Studies confirming: | Although the property contains appropriate
Breeding Habitat (Tree/Shrubs) | Great Blue Heron G064-GO76 islands, and peninsulas. Shrubs and occasionally emergent | «  Presence of 10 or more active nests of Great Blue ELC communities, the listed spedes were not

Black-crowned Night Heron G081-G092 vegetation may also be used. Heron. observed in the study area. More

Rationale; Large colonies are G097-G108 e Presence of 1 or more active nests of Black-crowned importantly, no evidence of nests within
important to local bird G113-G125 Most nests in trees are 11 to 15 m from ground, near the Night Heron is significant, these communities was observed. |
population, typically sites are G128-G136 top of the tree,
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Deer Yarding Areas

Rationale: Winter habitat for
deer is considered to be the main
limiting factor for northern deer
populations. in winter, deer
congregate in “yards” to survive
severe winter conditions
nommally encountered. Sites
typically have a long history of
annual use by deer. Sites
identified are typically the only
known sites in the area.

White-tailed Deer

May be found in all Tall Treed
forest and swamp ELC Ecosites;
G12-G15

G23-G27

G33-G38

G48-G54

G64-G69

G81-G87

G97-G103

G113-G118

G128-G129

Central Ontario Forest Ecosites:
ES11, ES14, ES16, ES18, ES20,
ES21, ES22, ES27, ES28, ES30,
ES31, €532, ES33, ES34

Note: OMNRF to determine this
habitat.

Deer wintering areas or winter concentration areas
(yards) are areas deer move to in response to the onset of
winter snow and cold. This is a behavioural response and
deer will establish traditional use areas. The yard is
composed of two areas referred to as Stratum | and
Stratum Il. Stratum Il covers the entire winter yard area
and is usually a mixed or deciduous forest with plenty of
browse avaitable for food. Agricultural lands can also be
included in this area. Deer move to these areas in early
winter and generally, when snow depths reach 20 cm,
most of the deer will have moved here. If the snow is light
and fluffy, deer may continue to use this area until 30 cm
snow depth. In mild winters, deer may remain in the
Stratum |l area the entire winter,

The Core of a deer yard (Stratum ) is located within
Stratum Il and is criticat for deer survival in areas where
winters become severe. It is primarily composed of
coniferous trees (pine, hemlock, cedar, spruce) with a
canopy cover of more than 60%

OMNRF determines deer yards following methods
outlined in “Selected Wildlife and Habitat Features:
Inventory Manual"

Woodlots with high densities of deer due to artificial
feeding are not significant.

No Studies Required:

| Habitat in study area does not meet criteria
Generally, there will be a history of traditional use of | refated to wildlife species. No further
the yard by deer, although deer do move to other areas | assessment was compited for this function.
over the course of time if conditions in the yard change I

or due to societal impacts (i.e. artificial deer feeding). 1
There may be circumstances where deer have recently

moved to new areas. ]

Deer Yards are mapped by OMNRF District offices.

Locations of Core (Stratum 1) and Stratum 2 deer yards i

identified by OMNRF will be available at local MNRF 1

offices.

Field investigations that record deer tracks in winter
are done to confirm use (best done from an aircraft).
Preferably, this is done over a series of winters to
establish the boundary of the Stratum | and Stratum Il
yard in an “average" winter. MNRF will complete these
field investigations.

If a SWH is determined for Deer Wintering Area or if a
proposed development is within a Stratum Il yarding
area then Movement Corridors are to be considered as
outlined in Table 1.4.1 of this Schedule.

SWHMIST Index #2 provides development effects and
mitigation measures.
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Assessment

Marram Grass
{(Ammophiia breviligulata)
Beach Pea (Lathyrus japonicus)

Rare Vegetation Community Candidate SWH Confirmed SWH
ELC Ecosite Code Habitat Description Detailed information and Sources Defining Criteria
Beach/ Beach Ridge/ Central Ontario FEC: Vegetation can vary from patchy Any identified beach, beach ridge, or sand dune. Field studies confirm the presence of at least one of
Bar/ Sand Dunes ES1 ES2 and barren to tree cover but less Information Sources the indicator plant species identified is to be
than 60%. characterised by e  OMNRF Districts, considered significant.
Rationale; ELC Ecosites: unstable sand, e Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC) e ELC Ecosite Area for Beach Ridge or Bar or Sand
Uncommon to rare in Ecoregion, | GO05-G006 will have information on their website, Dune is the SWH. |
some of the best examples arein | G166-G168 » Field Naturalist clubs I
the North Channel G182-G184 s County soil maps {(sand map units along *  SWHMIST index #37 provides direction for rare |
{Mississagi River delta) G213-G214 coastal bays) species and habitats. |
indicator Spp.

| None of the ELC Ecosites are presentontha |
| No further ass it wa

| eampleted for this function,

Shallow Atlantic Coastal Marsh

Rationale: Provincially rare
communities almost entirely
restricted to Ecoregion 5E.

ELC Ecosites:
G143-G145
G148-G152

Indicator Spp.:
Virginia Meadowbeauty

Rhexia virgininica)

Other Associated Spp:
Rhynchospora capiteliatg,
Xyris difformis

Panicum spretum
Triodenum virginicum,

Polygonum careyi and
Juncus militaris.

Shallow marsh occurs on shallow
mineral {sand) or mineral organic
(sandy peat) shoreline subject to
low wave energy, on inland lakes
and beaver ponds particularly
those that experience fluctuating
water levels from year to year (i.e.
some years with exposed
shorelines in summer /fali).

Information Sources

¢ OMNREF Districts.

e Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC)
will have information on their website.

e  Field Naturalist clubs

e  Nature Serve Canada

A Shallow Marsh is considered significant if the
Indicator Sp. and >4 Other Associated Spp. are
present,

ELC Ecosite Area for Shallow Atlantic Coastal
Marsh is the SWH.

SWHMIST Index #37 provides direction for rare
species and habitats,

Cliffs and Talus Slopes

ELC Ecosites:

Vegetation can vary from patchy

Any cliff or talus slope.

Any cliff or talus slope with lichen Umbilicaria spp and

| None of the ELC Ecosites are present on the

G158-G159 and barren to tree cover but less >3 of the characteristic species identified is considered | property. No further assessment was
Rationale; G166-G168 than 60%. Information Sources significant completed for this function.
Uncommon to rare in Ecoregion G173-G175 e  OMNRF Districts, ]
5E, Calcium rich, marble cliffs are | G182-G184 Cliffs and talus slopes in 5E are = Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC) Fragrant Cliff Fern (Dryopteris fragrans), is rare in Eco- |
a much rarer feature. G201-G203 primarily Precambrian rock and are will have information on their website, region 5E and Woodsia scopulina ssp. laurentiana, has |

typically sparsely vegetated. s Field Naturalist clubs a significant portion of its giobal range in 5E, where it |

Central Ontario Forest Ecosites: occurs on a variety of substrates, including granite.

ES6 Any cliff or talus slope with these rare plant species is [

ES7 significant. l

Characteristic flora for cliffs and talus ELC Ecosite Area for the cliff or talus slope is the SWH. |

slopes include: lichen, such as Rock Tripe |

Umbilicaria spp., and ferns Polypodium *  SWHMiSTexlix Index #21 provides development |

virginianum, Cystopteris fragilis and effects and mitigation measures. |

Woodsia ilvensis, Cryptogramma stelleri, |

Woodsia alpina, and Saxifraga |

Dpaniculate |

: |
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Rare Vegetation Community

Candidate SWH

Confirmed SWH

ELC Ecosite Code

Habitat Description

Detailed Information and Sources

Defining Criteria

Assessment

Rock Barren
Precambrian Rock Barren
Rationale;

Uncommon to rare in
Ecoregion 5E

ELC Ecosites:
G163-G165
Gl179-G181

Central Ontario Forest Ecosites:
ES8

Characteristic flora for Rock Barrens
include:

lichens Cladina spp.

and mosses Polytrichum spp.,

sparse grasslands of Danthonia spicata
and Deschampsia flexuosa, low shrubs
Juniperus communis, Vaccinium
angustifolium, Comptonia peregrine, and
stunted open grown trees Quercus alba,
Quercus rubra and Pinus strobus.

Also, Pteridiumn aguilinum,

Aratia hispidg,

Spiranthes casei

Saxifraqa virginiensis

Gavylussacia baccota,

Corydalis sempervirens,

Prunus pensylvanica, and

Comandra umbellata.

Vegetation can vary from patchy
and barren to tree cover but less
than 60%.

Rock barrens are characterized by
extensive areas of exposed granitic
rock bedrock sparsely vegetated.

Any rock barren area greater than 1 ha.

Information Sources

OMNRF Districts.

Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC)
will have information on their website.

Field Naturalist clubs

County soil maps will show these as bedrock
with sparse soil map units.

Field studies identifying the presence of >4

characteristic plant spp. and a relatively undisturbed

site should be considered significant

e ELCEcosite Area for the rock barren is the SWH.

o SWHMIST Index #21 provides development
effects and mitigation measures.

structure with no access to large cracks or
fissures through the majority of the ecosite,
For the purpose of this assessment, the
ecosite is not considered potential significant
wildlife habltat. Functions aro still considered
refated to potential habitat for Endangered or
Threatened species and mitigation is
currantly provided by the feature remains.

Sand Barren

Rationale;
Uncommeon to rare in
Ecoregion 5E

ELC Ecosites:
Goo7
G215

Central Ontario Forest Ecosite:
ES10

Characteristic plant species of sand
barrens in 5E include:
Cladina spp.,

Carex houghtoniana,
Carex merrittfernaldii,
Comptonia peregring,
Rubus flageliaris,
Selaginella rupestris,
and Viola labradorica
Polygonelia articulata
and Stipa sparteo.

Sand Barrens typically are exposed
sand, generally sparsely vegetated
and caused by lack of moisture,
periodic fires and erosion. They
have little or no soil and the
underlying rock protrudes through
the surface. Usually located within
other types of natural habitat such
as forest or savannah. Vegetation
can vary from patchy and barren to
tree covered but less than 60%.

Any sand barren area, no minimum size.

Information Sources

OMNRF Planner, Forester, Ecologist or
Biologist may be aware of locations.
Field Naturalist clubs

Sand Barrens containing any characteristic plant
species should be considered significant

ELC Ecosite Area for the sand barren is the SWH

Site must not be dominated by exotic or introduced
species (<50% vegetative cover exotics)

*  SWHMIST tndex #20 provides development
effects and mitigation measures.
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“Alvar

Rationale;

Alvars are extremely rare
habitats in Ecoregion 5E. Most
alvars in Ontario are in
Ecoregions 6E and 7E. Alvars in
5E are small and highly localized
just north of the Palaeozoic-
Precambrian contact.

Southern Ontario ELC Ecosites:
ALO1

AlLS1

ALT1

FOC1

FOC2

Ccum2

Cus2

CUT2-1

cuw?2

Central Ontario Forest Ecosites on very

shallow soils:
ES13.1, ES14.1, ES16.1, ES21.1, ES9

5E Alvar Plant Indicator species:
Penstemon hirsutus, Panicum
philadelphicum, Scutellaria parvuia
Rhus aromatica, Monarda fistulosa,
Senecio pauperculus

An alvar is typically a level, mostly
unfractured calcareous bedrock
feature with a mosaic of rock
pavements and bedrock overlain by
a thin veneer of soil. The

hydrology of alvars may be
complex, with alternating periods
of inundation and drought.
Vegetation cover varies from
sparse lichen-moss assaciations to
grasslands and shrublands and
comprising a number of
characteristic or indicator plant.
Undisturbed alvars can be phyto-
and zoogeographically diverse,
supporting many uncommon or are
relict plant and animals species.
Vegetation cover varies from
patchy to barren with a less than
60% tree cover

An Alvar site > 0.5 ha in size.

e information Sources Alvars of Ontario (2000},
Federation of Ontario Naturalists

*  Ontario Nature — Conserving Great Lakes
Alvars.

= Natural Heritage Information Centre (NHIC)
has information availabie on their website.

«  OMNRF Districts,

*  Field Naturalist clubs.

Field studies identify one ar more of the 5E Plant
Indicator species

Site must not be dominated by exotic or introduced

species. The alvar must be in excellent condition and

fit in with surrounding landscape with few conflicting

fand uses

e SWHMISTexlix Index #17 provides development
effects and mitigation measures

l NoneofmeEi.CEcosusam_presemmthe_ I
| propesty. No further assessment was
| completed for this function.

Old Growth Forest

Long-lived forest spp. within these
Central Ontario Forest Ecosites;

Old Growth forests are
characterized by exhibiting the

Stands 30 ha or greater in size or with at least 10
ha interior habitat assuming 100 m buffer at edge

Field Studies will determine:
e |f dominant trees species of the ecosite are >140

The majority of the property is forested but
none of the existing or dominant tvee species

Rationale; ES11 ES12 greatest number of old-growth of forest. years old, then stand is Significant Wildlife Habitat | within those ecosites appeared to be >60
Due to historic logging practices, | ES14 ES20 characteristics, such as mature e The forested area containing the old growth years old. As such, the forested areas on the
extensive old growth forest is ES21 ES22 forest with large trees that has information Sources characteristics will have experienced no property are uniikely to meet the eriteria for
rare in the Ecoregion. Interior ES23 ES24 been undisturbed. Heavy mortality | »  OMNRF Forest Resource Inventory mapping recognizable forestry activities exlviii {cut stumps | Old Growth Forest vegetation community.
habitat provided by old growth ES25 ES26 or turnover of overstorey trees e OMNREF Districts. will not be present})
forests is required by many ES27 ES28 resulting in a mosaic of gaps that e Field Naturalist clubs »  The stand will have experienced no recognizable | No further assessment was completed for this
wildlife species. ES29 ES30 encourage development of amulti- | o  Sustainable Forestry Licence (SFL) companies forestry activities | function.
or; layered canopy and an abundance will possibly know locations through field o The area of forest ecosites combined or an eco- |
ELC Ecosites: of snags and downed woody operations. element within the ecosites that contains the old |
G011, G015, GO17-G018, G023, G027, debris, growth characteristics is the SWH, |
G033, G036, GO39-G042, G048, GO51, |
G054-G058, G064, GO66, GOBI, ¢ SWHMIST Index #23 provides development |
G071-G075, G081, G084, G087, effects and mitigation measures
G089-G091, G103, G105-G107 |
G113, G115, G118, G120-G124 |
|
Bog ELC Ecosites: Bogs are nutrient-poor, acid Any size Bog, The Bog ELC Ecosite identified is SWH. | Nona of the ELC Ecosites are present on the
G126 peatlands dominated by peat e ELCEcosite area is the SWH property. No further assessment was
Rationale: G137-G138 mosses (Sphagnum sp.), ericaceous | Information Sources »  SWHMIST Index #22 provides development | completed for this function.
Bogs are a fairly rare vegetation shrubs and sedges (Cyperaceae). e  Ontario wetland Evaluation System available effects and mitigation measures. |
community in Ecoregion SE. The water table is at or near the at OMNRF District Offices
surface in spring and slightly lower | »  OMNRF Districts, |
the remainder of the year and is e Natural Heritage Information Center (NHIC) |
vitually isolated from mineral soil will have information on their website, |
waters e  Field Naturalist clubs |
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